#### Missouri Public Service Commission

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

#### TITLE SHEET

#### MISSOURI LOCAL EXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS TARIFF

**OF** 

#### JATO Operating Corp.

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations, and rates applicable to the furnishing of service and facilities for telecommunications services provided by JATO Operating Corp. within the State of Missouri. This tariff is on file with the Missouri Public Service Commission and copies may be inspected, during normal business hours, at JATO Operating Corp.'s principal place of business.

JATO Operating Corp. operates as a competitive telecommunications company as defined by Case No. TA-2000-141 within the State of Missouri.

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

By TD-2004-0283

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

Service Commission 0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAM 1 \(\frac{1}{2}\) 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 14 2000

Issued:

# Missouri Public Service Commission

#### WAIVER OF RULES AND REGULATIONS

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

Pursuant to Case No. TA-2000-141, the following statutes and rules have been waived for purposes of offering telecommunications services as set forth herein:

#### **STATUTES**

Section 392.210.2

Section 392.270

Section 392.280

Section 392.290

Section 392.290.1

Section 392.300.2

Section 392.310

Section 392.320

Section 392.330

Section 392.340

# **CANCELLED**

MAR 1.4 2004

By 7D-2004-0283

Public Service Commission MISSOURI

4 CSR 240-10.020

4 CSR 240-30.010 (2) (c)

4 CSR 240-30.040

4 CSR 240-32.030 (1) (B) & (C), (2)

COMMISSION RULES

4 CSR 240-32.050 (3) - (6)

4 CSR 240-32.070 (4)

4 CSR 240-33.030

4 CSR 240-33.040 (5)

seMissouri Publicator

FILED JAN 1 & 2000

DATE OF ISSUE NOV 3 0 1999

DATE EFFECTIVE

JAN 142000

# RECEIVED

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

MAY 1 1 2000

Title Sheet .		MO. PUBLIC SERVICE COMM
Waivers Gra	nted	2
Table of Con	tents	33
Tariff Forma	ıt	4
Explanation	of Sy	ymbols
Section 1 - R	Rules	and Regulations6
	.1	Undertaking of the Company6
1	.2	Provisioning of Equipment and Facilities
1	.3	Non-Routine Installation
1	.4	Special Construction
1	.5	Ownership of Facilities
1	.6	Prohibited Uses
1	.7	Customer Equipment and Channels
1	.8	Payment Arrangements
1	.9	Allowances for Interruption in Service
1	.10	Cancellation of Service/Termination
1	.11	Customer Liability for Unauthorized Use of Network
1	.12	Use of Customer's Service by Others
1	.13	Taxes and Surcharges
		CANCELLED
Section 2 - I	Defin	itions
Section 3 - I	Desci	iption of Basic Service and Rates
3	3.1	General
	3.2	Basic Rate Categories Public Service Commission 44 Rates MISSCURI 45
3	3.3	Rates
Section 4 - I	Expa	nded Services
. 4	l. 1	Office-to-Office Solutions
4	1.2	Teleworker Option

# FILED

JUN 12 2000

MISSOURI Public Service Commission Effective: June 12, 2000

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### Missouri Public Berlieb Cemmission

n'il or		REC'D FEB 2 5 2000	
Title Sheet	• • • •	1	
Waivers Gra	nted	2	
Γable of Co	ntents	s	
Tariff Form	at	4	
Explanation	of Sy	ymbols	
Section 1 - I	Rules	and Regulations6	
		Undertaking of the Company6	
1	1.2	Provisioning of Equipment and Facilities	
1	1.3	Non-Routine Installation	
1	1.4	Special Construction	
1	1.5	Ownership of Facilities	
1	1.6	Prohibited Uses	
1	1.7	Customer Equipment and Channels	
]	1.8	Payment Arrangements	
1	1.9	Allowances for Interruption in Service	
1	1.10	Cancellation of Service/Termination	
1	1.11	Customer Liability for Unauthorized Use of Network	
1	1.12	Use of Customer's Service by Others	
1	1.13	Taxes and Surcharges	
Section 2 - 1	Defin	cancelled CANCELLED 37	
Section 3 - l	Descr	ription of Basic Service and Rates	<b>(</b> T)
3	3.1	General	(N
3	3.2	Rate Categories Public Service Commission 44	(N

Missouri Public Service Commission

FILED APR 0 5 2000

4.1

(N)

(N)

## Missouri Public Service Commission

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

Title Sheet
Waivers Granted
Table of Contents
Tariff Format4
Explanation of Symbols
Section 1 - Rules and Regulations
Undertaking of the Company
Provisioning of Equipment and Facilities
Non-Routine Installation
Special Construction
Ownership of Facilities
Prohibited Uses
Customer Equipment and Channels
Payment Arrangements
Allowances for Interruption in Service
Cancellation of Service/Termination
Customer Liability for Unauthorized Use of Network
Use of Customer's Service by Others
Taxes and Surcharges
Section 2 -Definitions
Section 3 -Description of Service and Rates

# **CANCELLED**

APR 0 5 2000

By St RP 3

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

saMissouri Publigar 0 0 = 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

JAN 14 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

Issued:

#### TARIFF FORMAT

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

- A. <u>Sheet Numbering</u> Sheet numbers appear in the upper right-hand corner of the page. Sheets are numbered sequentially. However, new sheets are occasionally added to the tariff. When a new sheet is added between sheets already is in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new sheet added between sheets 8 and 9 would be 8.1.
- B. Sheet Revision Numbers Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of each page. These numbers are used to determine the most current sheet version on file with the Missouri Public Service Commission. For example, the 3<sup>rd</sup> revised Sheet 8 cancels the 2<sup>nd</sup> revised Sheet 8.
- C. <u>Paragraph Numbering Sequence</u>

There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level of coding to subsequent to its next higher level:

1.
1.1.
1.1.1.
1.1.1.A.
1.1.1.A.1.
1.1.1.A.1.(a)
1.1.1.A.1.(a).I.
1.1.1.A.1.(a).I.(i)
1.1.1.A.1.(a).I.(i)

# **CANCELLED**

MAR 1 4 2004

By 7D- 2004-0283

Public Service Commission

MISSOURI

6 Miggori Publigs... 0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 14 2000

Issued:

#### EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS

Missouri Public Service Commission

The following are only symbols used for the purposes indicated below:

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

- C To signify changed regulation
- D Delete or discontinue
- 1 Change resulting in an increase to a customer's bill
- M Moved from another tariff location
- N New
- R Change resulting in a decrease to a customer's bill
- T Change in text or regulation but no change in rate or charge

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

By TD-2004- 0283

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

NICONI FUNISA-0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 14 2000

Issued:

#### 1.1 Undertaking of the Company

Missouri Public Service Commission

1.1.1. Scope RFC'D FEB 2 5 2000

The Company undertakes to furnish communications service pursuant to the terms of this tariff in connection with one-way and/or two-way information transmission between points within the State of Missouri.

Customers and users may use services and facilities provided under this tariff to obtain access to services offered by other service providers. The Company is responsible under this tariff only for the services and facilities provided hereunder, and it assumes no responsibility for any service provided by any other entity that purchases services from the Company and/or services under this tariff, in order to originate or terminate its own services, or to communicate with its own Customers.

#### 1.1.2. Shortage of Equipment or Facilities

- A) The Company reserves the right to limit or to allocate the use of existing facilities, or of additional facilities offered by the Company, when necessary because of a lack of facilities, or due to any other cause beyond the Company's control.
- The Company will provide service within 300 feet from the area abutting its B) transmission facilities as defined within.
- C) The furnishing of all services under this tariff is subject to the availability on a continuing basis of all the necessary facilities and is limited to the capacity of the Company's facilities as well as facilities the Company may obtain from other carriers to furnish service from time to time as required at the sole discretion of the Company.

#### 1.1.3. **Terms and Conditions**

Issued: February 25, 2000

- Service is provided on the basis of a minimum period of at least one month, A) 24-hours per day. For the purpose of computing charges in this tariff, a month is considered to have 30 days.
- B) Persons desiring to obtain the Company's service may do so by completing the Company's stand of the

Missouri Public

MAR 1 4 2004

By 7D-2004-1283

FILED APR 0 5 2000

Effective: April 5, 2000

Denver, CO 80202

(M)

### 1.1 Undertaking of the Company

#### Missouri Public Service Commission

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

#### 1.1.1 Scope

The Company undertakes to furnish communications service pursuant to the terms of this tariff in connection with one-way and/or two-way information transmission between points within the State of Missouri.

Customers and users may use services and facilities provided under this tariff to obtain access to services offered by other service providers. The Company is responsible under this tariff only for the services and facilities provided hereunder, and it assumes no responsibility for any service provided by any other entity that purchases services from the Company and/or services under this tariff, in order to originate or terminate its own services, or to communicate with its own Customers.

#### 1.1.2 Shortage of Equipment or Facilities

- A) The Company reserves the right to limit or to allocate the use of existing facilities, or of additional facilities offered by the Company, when necessary because of a lack of facilities, or due to any other cause beyond the Company's control.
- B) The Company will provide service within 300 feet from the area abutting its transmission facilities as defined within.
- C) The furnishing of all services under this tariff is subject to the availability on a continuing basis of all the necessary facilities and is limited to the capacity of the Company's facilities as well as facilities the Company may obtain from other carriers to furnish service from time to time as required at the sole discretion of the Company.

#### 1.1.3 Terms and Conditions

A) Service is provided on the basis of a minimum period of at least one month, 24-hours per day. For the purpose of computing charges in this tariff, a month is considered to have 30 days.

APR 0 5 2000  $_{\rm Ey}$   $_{\rm SL}$   $_{\rm RPC}$   $_{\rm C}$   $_{\rm C}$   $_{\rm Ey}$   $_{\rm SErvice}$  Commission MISSOURI  $_{\rm E}$ 

Persons desiring to obtain the Company's service may do so by completing the Company's standard Service Order form or forms or by oral agreement.

An Applicant for service must pay all previous indebtedness to the Company for telecommunications services before service will be furnished. Failure to pay for business service shall not constitute sufficient cause for refusal of residence service and failure to pay for residence service shall not constitute sufficient cause for refusal of business service.

NOV 3 0 1999

FILED JAN 1 2000

JAN 14 2000

Issued:

1.1 Undertaking of the Company (continued) Service Commission

1.1.3. Terms and Conditions (continued)

**REC'D FEB 2 5 2000** 

B) (continued)

> An Applicant for service must pay all previous indebtedness to the Company (M) for telecommunications services before service will be furnished. Failure to pay for business service shall not constitute sufficient cause for refusal of residence service and failure to pay for residence service shall not constitute sufficient (M) cause for refusal of business service.

An application for service becomes a contract upon the signing of the Company's Service Order form or by oral mutual agreement. Neither the contract nor any rights acquired thereunder may be assigned or in any manner transferred.

C) Except as otherwise provided, the initial (or minimum) period for all services and facilities is one (1) month at the same location. Customers may terminate service at any time by providing the Company written or verbal, and all recurring charges shall be prorated to the date of disconnection of service.

The Company may require a contract period longer than one (1) month at the same location in connection with Business Service and special (nonstandard) types of arrangements of equipment, or for unusual construction, necessary to meet special demands and involving extra costs.

1.1.4. Customer Responsibilities Missouri Publiq

The Customer shall be responsible for:

FILFO APR 0 5 2000

A) The payment of all applicable charges as set forth in this tariff.

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

Damage or loss of the Company's facilities or equipment caused by the acts or omissions of the Customer or authorized user, the noncompliance by the Customer or authorized user with these regulations, or by fire or theft, or other casualty on the premises of the Customer or authorized user unless caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the employee or agents of the By 7D-2004-0283 Company.

Public Service Commission MISSOURI C) Pr

Providing as specified from time to time by the Company any needed personnel, equipment, space and power to operate Company facilities and equipment installed on the premises of the Customer or authorized user and the level of heating and air conditioning necessary to maintain the proper environment on such premises.

### 1.1 Undertaking of the Company (continued)

#### Missouri Public Service Commission

### 1.1.3 <u>Terms and Conditions</u> (continued)

**RECD NOV 3 0 1999** 

B) (continued)

An application for service becomes a contract upon the signing of the Company's Service Order form or by oral mutual agreement. Neither the contract nor any rights acquired thereunder may be assigned or in any manner transferred.

C) Except as otherwise provided, the initial (or minimum) period for all services and facilities is one (1) month at the same location. Customers may terminate service at any time by providing the Company written or verbal, and all recurring charges shall be prorated to the date of disconnection of service.

The Company may require a contract period longer than one (1) month at the same location in connection with Business Service and special (nonstandard) types of arrangements of equipment, or for unusual construction, necessary to meet special demands and involving extra costs.

#### 1.1.4 Customer Responsibilities

The Customer shall be responsible for:

- A) The payment of all applicable charges as set forth in this tariff.
- B) Damage or loss of the Company's facilities or equipment caused by the acts or omissions of the Customer or authorized user, the noncompliance by the Customer or authorized user with these regulations, or by fire or theft, or other casualty on the premises of the Customer or authorized user unless caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the employee or agents of the Company.
- C) Providing as specified from time to time by the Company any needed personnel, equipment, space and power to operate Company facilities and equipment installed on the premises of the Customer or authorized user and the level of heating and air conditioning necessary to maintain the proper environment on such premises.

CANCELLED

APR 0 5 2000

By STRPT
Public Service Commission
MISSOLIBI

S. Micoguri Pudiigo. 0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 14 2000

Issued: November 30, 1999

1.2 <u>Undertaking of the Company</u> (continued)

Missouri Public Service Commission

1.1.4 <u>Customer Responsibilities</u> (continued)

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

The Customer shall be responsible for: (continued)

- D) Obtaining, maintaining, and otherwise having full responsibility for all rights of way and conduit necessary for installation of facilities and associated equipment used to provide Service to the Customer or authorized user from the point of entry to the termination point of the Customer's premises. Any and all costs associated with the obtaining and maintaining of the rights of way described herein, including the costs of altering the structure to permit installation of the Company provided facilities, shall be borne entirely by, or may be charged by, the Company to the Customer. The Company may require the Customer to demonstrate its compliance with this section prior to accepting an order for service.
- Providing a safe place to work and complying with all laws and regulations regarding the working conditions on the premises at which Company employees and agents shall be installing or maintaining the Company's facilities and equipment. The Customer may be required to install and maintain Company facilities and equipment within a hazardous area if harm to the Company's employees or property might result from installation or maintenance by the Company.
- F) Complying with all laws and regulations applicable to, and obtaining all consents, approvals, licenses and permits as may be required with respect to, the location of Company facilities and equipment in any Customer premises or the rights-of-way for which the Customer is responsible, and obtaining permission for Company agents or employees to enter the premises of the Customer or authorized user at any reasonable hour for the purpose of installing, inspecting, repairing, or, upon termination of service as stated herein, removing the facilities or equipment of the Company.
- G) Making Company facilities and equipment available periodically for maintenance purposes at a time agreeable to both the Company and the Customer. No allowance will be made for the period during which service is interrupted for such purposes.
- H) Keeping the Company's equipment and facilities located on the Customer's premises or rights-of-way obtained by the Customer free and clear of any liens or encumbrances relating to the Customer's use of the Company's services or from the locations of such equipment and facilities.

**CANCELLED** 

MAR 1 4 2004

By 7D-2004-0283

-LIVICE CENTABISIC. 0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

Public Service Commission

## 1.5 <u>Undertaking of the Company</u> (continued)

#### Missouri Public Setvice Commission

#### 1.1.5 Limitations on Liability

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

Liability of the Company

Service Liabilities

In view of the fact that the Customer has exclusive control of their communications over the facilities furnished them by the Company, and of the other uses for which facilities may be furnished them by the Company, and because of unavoidability of errors incident to the services and to the use of such facilities of the Company, the services and facilities furnished by the Company are subject to the following terms, conditions and limitations.

#### A) Limitations

- Except as otherwise provided herein, no liability for direct, incidental or consequential damages shall attach to the Company, its agents, servants or employees, for damages or costs arising from errors, mistakes, omissions, interruptions, failures, delays, or defects or malfunctions of equipment or facilities, in the course of establishing, furnishing, maintaining, rearranging, moving, terminating, or changing the service or facilities (including the obtaining or furnishing of information in respect thereof or with respect to the customers or users of the service or facilities) in the absence of willful and wanton conduct, whether a claim for such liability is premised upon breach of contract, breach of warranty, fulfillment of warranty, negligence, strict liability, misrepresentation, fraud, or any other theories of liability.
- a. In the event an error or omission is caused by the negligence of the Company, the liability of the Company shall be limited to and in no event exceed the sum of \$ 100.00.
- b. The Company will not provide a credit allowance for interruptions of service caused by the Customer's facilities, equipment, or systems.

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

a-Missouri Publica-

FILED JAN 14 2000

Issued: November 30, 1999

(T)

#### **SECTION 1 - RULES AND REGULATIONS**

1.1 <u>Undertaking of the Company</u> (continued)

Missouri Public Baivies Cammission

1.1.5. <u>Limitations on Liability</u> (continued)

**REC'D FEB 2 5 2000** 

- A) <u>Limitations</u> (continued)
  - 2) The sole and exclusive remedy against the Company for an interruption (T) or failure of service resulting from errors, mistakes, omissions, interruptions, failures, delays, or defects or malfunctions of equipment or facilities shall be as follows:
    - a) The Company shall repair or replace any item of its terminal facilities or defective part thereof at its expense. The Company shall have the option to decide whether to repair or replace its terminal facilities.
    - b) Allowances are provided for interruptions in service, as specified for particular services furnished solely by the Company.
    - c) The Company shall allow for interruptions in service of 24 hours or more, not due to conduct of the Customer, an amount equal to the fixed monthly charges for service(s) provided by the Company, multiplied by the ratio of the days of interruption to thirty days. When interruptions continue beyond 24 hours, credit allowance will be given in successive 24-hour multiples. An interruption is deemed to exist from the time it is reported to or detected by the Company. For the purpose of determining the amount of allowance every month is considered to have 30 days.

## B) <u>Liability</u>

 The Company shall not be liable for any act or omission of any carrier, Customer or other Company providing a portion of a service, nor shall the Company for its own act or omission hold liable any carrier, Customer or other Company providing a portion of a service.

# CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

Missouri Publi**s** Service Carrinisison

By 7D-2004-0283
Public Service Commission

FILED APR 0 5 2000

Issued: February 25, 2000

Effective: April 5, 2000

1.5 <u>Undertaking of the Company</u> (continued)

Missouri Public Service Commission

1.1.5 <u>Limitations on Liability</u> (continued)

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

Liability of the Company (continued)

Service Liabilities (continued)

#### A) <u>Limitations</u> (continued)

- The sole and exclusive remedy against the Company for an interruption or failure of service resulting from errors, mistakes, omissions, interruptions, failures, delays, or defects or malfunctions of equipment or facilities shall be as follows:
  - a. The Company shall repair or replace any item of its terminal facilities or defective part thereof at its expense. The Company shall have the option to decide whether to repair or replace its terminal facilities.
  - b. Allowances are provided for interruptions in service, as specified for particular services furnished solely by the Company.
  - c. The Company shall allow for interruptions in service of 24 hours or more, not due to conduct of the Customer, an amount equal to the fixed monthly charges for service(s) provided by the Company, multiplied by the ratio of the days of interruption to thirty days. When interruptions continue beyond 24 hours, credit allowance will be given in successive 24-hour multiples. An interruption is deemed to exist from the time it is reported to or detected by the Company. For the purpose of determining the amount of allowance every month is considered to have 30 days.

#### B) <u>Liability</u>

1) The Company shall not be liable for any act or omission of any carrier, Customer or other Company providing a portion of a service, nor shall the Company for its own act or omission hold liable any carrier, Customer or other Company providing a portion of a service.

## **CANCELLED**

APR 0 5 2000

Public Service Commission MISSOURI

50 O - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

JAN 14 2000

**NOV 3 0 1999**Issued:

1.1 <u>Undertaking of the Company</u> (continued)

Missouri Fubiic Service Commission

1.1.5 <u>Limitations on Liability</u> (continued)

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

- B) <u>Liability</u> (continued)
  - 2) The Company shall be indemnified, defended and held harmless by the Customer, against any claim, loss or damage arising from the use of services offered under this tariff including, but not limited to claims by subscribers or Customers to services provided to the Customer, and users of any services provided by or resold by the Customer. Liability of the Company to another LEC, Common Carrier, Reseller or Service Provider resulting from any and all causes, shall not exceed the liability of the Company as stated preceding, and in this paragraph. Specifically, the Company shall be liable only for the service(s) or facility (ies) that it provides and maintains. Such liability shall not exceed an amount equal to the proportionate charge for the service for the period during which the service was affected. In no case shall the Company be liable to another LEC, Common Carrier, Reseller or Service Provider or another LEC's, Common Carrier's, Reseller's or Service Provider's end user, for any indirect, special or consequential damages, including, but not limited to, economic loss, lost business or profits, whether foreseeable or not, and regardless of notification by the other party of the possibility of such damages.
  - Use of Customer-Provided Equipment The services furnished by the Company, in addition to the preceding limitations also are subject to the following limitation: the Company shall not be liable for damage arising out of mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors or defects in transmission or other injury, including but not limited to injuries to persons or property from voltages or currents transmitted over the service of the Company, (1) caused by or resulting from use of Customer-provided equipment, except where a contributing or concurrent cause is the malfunctioning of a Company-provided connecting arrangement, in which event the liability of the Company shall not exceed an amount equal to a proportional amount of the Company billing for the period of service during which such mistake, omission, interruption, delay, error, defect in transmission or injury occurs after notice by the subscriber to the Company.

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

By TD-2004-0283
Public Service Commission

0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

#### Undertaking of the Company (continued) 1.1

# Missouri Public

#### <u>Limitations on Liability</u> (continued)

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

- B) Liability (continued)
  - 4) Unauthorized Computer Intrusion - With respect to any other claim or suit by a subscriber, common carrier, reseller, or any other party for damages caused by, or associated with, any unauthorized computer intrusion, including but not limited to the input of damaging information such as a virus, time bomb, any unauthorized access, interference, alteration, destruction, theft of, or tampering with, a Company computer, switch, data, database, software, information, network or other similar system, the Company's liability, if any, shall not exceed an amount equal to the proportionate charge by the Company for the service for the period during which the service provided by the Company was affected or so utilized.
  - 5) Transmission of Data - The Company shall not be held liable for any damage, harm or loss of data caused by the subscriber using the Company's voicegrade telephone access lines and/or facilities for the transmission of data. The Company's liability shall be limited to errors or damages to the transmission of voice messages over these facilities, and the liability shall be limited to an amount equal to the proportional amount of the Company's billing for the period of service during which the errors or damages occur.
  - 6) Errors or Damages Caused by System Data Limitations - The Company's liability for errors or damage resulting from the inability of the Company's systems to process unusual dates, such as the Year 2000, shall be limited to an amount equal to the proportional amount of the Company's billing for the period of service during which the errors or damages occur.
  - The Company is not liable for damages to the Customer premises resulting 7) from the furnishing of a service, including the installation and removal of equipment and associated wiring, unless the damage is caused by the Company's negligence.

## CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

by TD-2004-0283 Public Service Commission FILED JAN 1 4 2000 MISSOURI

JAN 1 4 2000

NOA 3 D 1888

RECEIVED

1.1 <u>Undertaking of the Company</u> (continued)

MAY 1 1 2000

1.1.5. <u>Limitations on Liability</u> (continued)

MO. PUBLIC SERVICE COMM

- B) Liability (continued)
  - 8) The Company shall be indemnified, defended and held harmless by the Customer against any claim, loss or damage arising from the Customer's use of services offered under this Tariff, involving:
    - a) Claims for libel, slander, invasion of privacy, or infringement of copyright arising from the Customer's own communications; or
    - b) Claims for patent infringement arising from the Customer's acts combining or using the service furnished by the Company in connection with facilities, services, or equipment furnished by the Customer; or
    - c) All other claims arising out of any act or omission of the Customer in the course of using services pursuant to this Tariff; or
    - d) Claims involving the content of the information transmitted through (N) Company's facilities, including, but not limited to, those related to pornography and indecency. (N)
  - 9) The Company does not guarantee or make any warranty with respect to its services when used in an explosive atmosphere. The Company shall be indemnified, defended and held harmless by the Customer from any and all claims by any person relating to such Customer's use of services so provided.
  - 10) No license under patents (other than the limited license to use) is granted by the Company or shall be implied or arise by estoppel, with respect to any service offered under this Tariff. The Company will defend the Customer against claims of patent infringement arising solely from the use by the Customer of services offered under this Tariff and will indemnify such damages awarded based solely on such claims.

The Company's failure to provide or maintain services under this Tariff shall be excused by labor difficulties, governmental orders, civil commotions, criminal actions taken against the Company, acts of God and other circumstances beyond the Company's reasonable control, subject to the Credit Allowance for Service Interruptions as set forth in this Tariff

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

By TD- 2004-0283 Public Service Commission MISSOURI

Issued: May 11, 2000

Effective: June 10, 2000 2000

### 1.1 <u>Undertaking of the Company</u> (continued)

Missouri Public

1.1.5 <u>Limitations on Liability</u> (continued)

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

- B) <u>Liability</u> (continued)
  - 8) The Company shall be indemnified, defended and held harmless by the Customer against any claim, loss or damage arising from the Customer's use of services offered under this Tariff, involving:
  - a. Claims for libel, slander, invasion of privacy, or infringement of copyright arising from the Customer's own communications;
  - b. Claims for patent infringement arising from the Customer's acts combining or using the service furnished by the Company in connection with facilities, services, or equipment furnished by the Customer or;
  - c. All other claims arising out of any act or omission of the Customer in the course of using services pursuant to this Tariff.
  - 9) The Company does not guarantee or make any warranty with respect to its services when used in an explosive atmosphere. The Company shall be indemnified, defended and held harmless by the Customer from any and all claims by any person relating to such Customer's use of services so provided.
  - 10) No license under patents (other than the limited license to use) is granted by the Company or shall be implied or arise by estoppel, with respect to any service offered under this Tariff. The Company will defend the Customer against claims of patent infringement arising solely from the use by the Customer of services offered under this Tariff and will indemnify such damages awarded based solely on such claims.
  - The Company's failure to provide or maintain services under this Tariff shall be excused by labor difficulties, governmental orders, civil commotions, criminal actions taken against the Company, acts of God and other circumstances beyond the Company's reasonable control, subject to the Credit Allowance for Service Interruptions as set forth in this Tariff.

CANCELLED

SeMissouri Publicar 0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

JUN 1 2 2000 By 1 女 R P 1 3

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

JAN 14 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

## 1.1 <u>Undertaking of the Company</u> (continued)

# Service Commission

1.1.5 <u>Limitations on Liability</u> (continued)

**RECD NOV 3 0 1999** 

- B <u>Liability</u> (continued)
  - 12) Temporary Suspension for Repairs the Company shall have the right to make necessary repairs or changes in its facilities at any time and will have the right to suspend or interrupt service temporarily for the purpose of making the necessary repairs or changes in its system. When such suspension or interruption of service for any appreciable period is necessary, the Company will give the Customers who may be affected as reasonable notice thereof as circumstances will permit, and will prosecute the work with reasonable diligence, and if practicable at times that will cause the least inconvenience.

#### 1.2 Provision of Equipment and Facilities

- A) Except as otherwise indicated, Customer-provided station equipment at the Customer's premises for use in connection with this service shall be so constructed, maintained and operated as to work satisfactorily with the facilities of the Company.
- B) The Company shall not be responsible for the installation, operation or maintenance of any Customer-provided communications equipment. Where such equipment is connected to service furnished pursuant to this tariff, the responsibility of the Company shall be limited to the furnishing of services under this tariff and to the maintenance and operation of such services in the proper manner. Subject to this responsibility, the Company shall not be responsible for:
  - 1) through transmission of signals generated by Customer-provided equipment or for the quality of, or defects in, such transmission; or
  - 2) the reception of signals by Customer-provided equipment; or
  - 3) network control signaling where such signaling is performed by Customer-provided network control signaling equipment.

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

Public Service Commission

J.Missouri Publissor 0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 1 4 2000

Issued:

# Missouri Public

#### Non-Routine Installation 1.3

RFC'D NOV 3 0 1999

At the Customer's request, installation and/or maintenance may be performed outside the Company's regular business hours or in hazardous locations. In such cases, charges based on cost of the actual labor, material, or other costs incurred by or charges to the Company will apply. If installation is started during regular business hours but, at the Customer's request, extends beyond regular business hours into time periods including, but not limited to, weekends, holidays, and/or night hours, additional charges may apply.

#### **Special Construction** 1.4

Subject to the agreement of the Company and to all of the regulations contained in this tariff, special construction of facilities may be undertaken on a reasonable efforts basis at the request of the Customer. Special construction is that construction undertaken:

- A) where facilities are not presently available, and there is no other requirement for the facilities so constructed;
- B) of a type other than that which the Company would normally utilize in the furnishing of its services;
- C) over a route other than that which the Company would normally utilize in the furnishing of its services:
- D) in a quantity greater than that which the Company would normally construct;
- E) on an expedited basis;
- F) on a temporary basis until permanent facilities are available;
- G) involving abnormal costs; or

H) in advance of its normal construction. CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

By 7D-2004-0283
Public Service Commission

#### 1.5 Ownership of Facilities

Title to all facilities provided in accordance with this tariff remains in the Company, its agents or contractors. The Customer shall not have, nor shall it assert, any right, title or interest in any of the fiber optic or other facilities and associated equipment provided by the Company hereunder.

Miseouri Publique

Issued: November 30, 1999

#### Missouri Public Service Commission

### 1.6 <u>Prohibited Uses</u>

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

- A) The services the Company offers shall not be used for any unlawful purpose or for any use as to which the Customer has not obtained all governmental approvals, authorizations, licenses, consents and permits required to be obtained by the Customer with respect thereto.
- B) The Company may require applicants for service who intend to use the Company's offerings for resale and/or for shared use to file a letter with the Company confirming that their use of the Company's offerings complies with relevant laws and Commission regulations, policies, orders, and decisions.
- C) The Company may, without obtaining any further consent from the Customer, assign any rights, privileges, or obligations under this tariff.
  - The Customer shall not, without prior written consent of the Company, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, assign, transfer, or in any other manner dispose of, any of its rights, privileges, or obligations under this tariff, and any attempt to make such an assignment, transfer, or disposition without consent shall be null and void.
- D) A Customer may not use the services so as to interfere with or impair service over any facilities and associated equipment, or so as to impair the privacy of any communications over such facilities and associated equipment. The Company may require a Customer to shut down its transmission of signals individually if said transmission is causing interference to others.
- E) Customer use of any resold service obtained from other service providers shall also be subject to any applicable restrictions in the underlying providers' publicly available tariffs.
- Customer or authorized user shall not represent that its services are provided by the Company, or otherwise indicate to its Customers that its provision of services is jointly with the Company, without the written consent of the Company. The relationship between the Company and Customer shall not be that of partners or agents for one or the other, and shall not be deemed to constitute a partnership or agency agreement.

  CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

By 7D-2004-0283

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

SINIES CHITAISIS ON FILED JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 14 2000

Issued:

# Service Commission

### 1.7 <u>Customer Equipment and Channels</u>

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

#### 1.7.1 General

A Customer may transmit or receive information or signals via the facilities of the Company. The Company's services are designed for the transmission of voice-grade telephone signals, except as otherwise stated in this tariff. A Customer may transmit any type of data signal that is compatible with the Company's equipment, but the Company does not guarantee that its services will be suitable for purposes other than voice-grade telephonic communications except as specifically stated in this tariff.

#### 1.7.2 Station Equipment

- A) Customer provided terminal equipment on the premises of the Customer or authorized user, the operating personnel there, and the electric power consumed by such equipment shall be provided by and maintained at the expense of the Customer or authorized user. Conformance of customer-provided station equipment with Part 68 of the FCC Rules is the responsibility of the Customer.
- B) The Customer or authorized user is responsible for ensuring that Customer-provided equipment connected to Company equipment and facilities is compatible with such equipment and facilities. The magnitude and character of the voltages and currents impressed on Company provided equipment and wiring by the connection, operation, or maintenance of such equipment and wiring shall be such as not to cause damage to the Company provided equipment and wiring or injury to the Company's employees or to other persons. Any additional protective equipment required to prevent such damage or injury shall be provided by the Company at the Customer's expense.

**CANCELLED** 

MAR 1 4 2004

By TD-2004-0283

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

MISSOUTI RWALISON O O - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 2 2000

JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

## Replaces 2<sup>nd</sup> Revised Page No. 18

# SECTION 1 - RULES AND REGULATIONS Missouri Public Service Commission

#### 1.7 Customer Equipment and Channels (continued)

**RECD AUG 18 2000** 

#### 1.7.3. Interconnection of Facilities

- A) Line conditioning and any special interface equipment necessary to achieve compatibility between the facilities and equipment of the Company used for furnishing Communications Services and the channels, facilities, or equipment of others shall be provided at the Customer's expense.
- B) Communications Services may be connected to the services or facilities of other communications carriers when authorized by, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions of the tariffs of the other communications carriers, and this Company, which are applicable to such connections.
- C) Facilities furnished under this tariff may be connected to Customer provided terminal equipment in accordance with the provisions of this tariff. All such equipment shall be registered by the Federal Communications Commission pursuant to Part 68 of Title 47, Code of Federal Regulations; and all User-provided wiring shall be installed and maintained in compliance with those regulations.
- D) Users may interconnect communications facilities that are used in whole or in part for intrastate communications to services provided under this tariff only to the extent that the user is an "end user" as defined in Section 69.2(m), Title 47, Code of Federal (T) Regulations (1992 edition).

#### 1.7.4. Inspections

- Upon suitable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, the Company may A) make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the Customer or authorized user is complying with the requirements set forth above for the installation, operation and maintenance of Customer-provided facilities, equipment, and wiring in the connection of Customer-provided facilities and equipment to Company owned facilities and equipment.
- If the protective requirements for Customer-provided equipment are not being complied B) with, the Company may take such action as it deems necessary to protect its facilities, equipment, and personnel. The Company will notify the Customer promptly if there is any need for further corrective action. Within ten (10) days of receiving this notice, the Customer must take such action. If the Customer fails to do this, the Company may take whatever additional action is deemed necessary, including the suspension of service, to protect its facilities, equipment, and personnel from harm Missouri Public Service Commission

CANCELLED

FILED SEP 17 2000

MAR 1 4 2004

By TD-2004-0283
Public Service Commission

Issued: August 18, 2000

Effective: September 17, 2000

RECEIVED

#### 1.7 <u>Customer Equipment and Channels</u> (continued)

MAY 1 1 2000

#### 1.7.3. Interconnection of Facilities

MO. PUBLIC SERVICE COMM

- A) Line conditioning and any special interface equipment necessary to achieve compatibility between the facilities and equipment of the Company used for furnishing Communications Services and the channels, facilities, or equipment of others shall be provided at the Customer's expense.
- B) Communications Services may be connected to the services or facilities of other communications carriers when authorized by, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions of the tariffs of the other communications carriers, and this Company, which are applicable to such connections.
- C) Facilities furnished under this tariff may be connected to Customer provided terminal equipment in accordance with the provisions of this tariff. All such equipment shall be registered by the Federal Communications Commission pursuant to Part 68 of Title 47, Code of Federal Regulations; and all User-provided wiring shall be installed and maintained in compliance with those regulations.
- D) Users may interconnect communications facilities that are used in whole or in part for intrastate communications to services provided under this tariff only to the extent that the user is an "end user" as defined in Section G9.2(m), Title 47, Code of Federal Regulations (1992 edition).

#### 1.7.4. <u>Inspections</u>

- A) Upon suitable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, the Company may make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the Customer or authorized user is complying with the requirements set forth above for the installation, operation and maintenance of Customer-provided facilities, equipment, and wiring in the connection of Customer-provided facilities and equipment to Company owned facilities and equipment.
- B) If the protective requirements for Customer-provided equipment are not being complied with, the Company may take such action as it deems necessary to protect its facilities, equipment, and personnel. The Company will notify the Customer promptly if there is any need for further corrective action. Within ten (10) days of receiving this notice, the Customer must take such action. If the Customer fails to do this, the Company may take whatever additional action is deemed necessary, including the suspension of service, to protect its facilities, equipment, and personnel from harm.

CANCELLED

SEP, 17 2000 3ND RP18

FILED

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

JUN 12 2000

Patrick M. Green, Vice President - Carrier Relations JATO Operating Corp. 1099 18th Street, Suite 2200

199 18" Street, Suite 220 Denver, CO 80202 Effective: June 12, 2000 MISSOURI Public Service Commission

## 1.7 <u>Customer Equipment and Channels</u> (continued)

#### Missouri Public Burvise Commission

#### 1.7.3. Interconnection of Facilities

## REC'D FEB 2 5 2000

- A) Line conditioning and any special interface equipment necessary to achieve (T) compatibility between the facilities and equipment of the Company used for furnishing Communications Services and the channels, facilities, or equipment of others shall be provided at the Customer's expense.
- B) Communications Services may be connected to the services or facilities of other communications carriers when authorized by, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions of the tariffs of the other communications carriers, and this Company, which are applicable to such connections.
- C) Facilities furnished under this tariff may be connected to Customer provided terminal equipment in accordance with the provisions of this tariff. All such equipment shall be registered by the Federal Communications Commission pursuant to Part 68 of Title 47, Code of Federal Regulations; and all User-provided wiring shall be installed and maintained in compliance with those regulations.
- Users may interconnect communications facilities that are used in whole or in part for intrastate communications to services provided under this tariff only to the extent that the user is an "end user" as defined in Section G9.2(m), Title 47, Code of Federal Regulations (1992 edition).

#### 1.7.4. <u>Inspections</u>

A)

FILED APR 0 5 2000

Upon suitable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, the Company may make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the Customer or authorized user is complying with the requirements set forth above for the installation, operation and maintenance of Customer-provided facilities, equipment, and wiring in the connection of Customer-provided facilities and equipment to Company owned facilities and equipment.

If the protective requirements for Customer-provided equipment are not being complied with, the Company may take such action as it deems necessary to protect its facilities, equipment, and personnel. The Company will notify the Customer promptly if there is any need for further corrective action. Within (10) days of receiving this notice, the Customer must take such action. If the Customer fails to do this, the Company may take whatever additional action is deemed necessary, including the suspension of service, to protect its facilities, equipment, and personnel from harm.

CANCELLED
JUN 1 2 2000
Ey 2 NO R.P. 18
Liblic Service Commiss

Issued: February 25, 2000

Effective: April 5, 2000

### Missouri Public Service Commission

#### 1.7.3 Interconnection of Facilities

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

- A) Any special interface equipment necessary to achieve compatibility between the facilities and equipment of the Company used for furnishing Communications Services and the channels, facilities, or equipment of others shall be provided at the Customer's expense.
- B) Communications Services may be connected to the services or facilities of other communications carriers when authorized by, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions of the tariffs of the other communications carriers, and this Company, which are applicable to such connections.
- C) Facilities furnished under this tariff may be connected to Customer provided terminal equipment in accordance with the provisions of this tariff. All such equipment shall be registered by the Federal Communications Commission pursuant to Part 68 of Title 47, Code of Federal Regulations; and all User-provided wiring shall be installed and maintained in compliance with those regulations.
- D) Users may interconnect communications facilities that are used in whole or in part for intrastate communications to services provided under this tariff only to the extent that the user is an "end user" as defined in Section G9.2(m), Title 47, Code of Federal Regulations (1992 edition).

### 1.7.4 Inspections

- A) Upon suitable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, the Company may make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the Customer or authorized user is complying with the requirements set forth above for the installation, operation and maintenance of Customer-provided facilities, equipment, and wiring in the connection of Customer-provided facilities and equipment to Company owned facilities and equipment.
- B) If the protective requirements for Customer-provided equipment are not being complied with, the Company may take such action as it deems necessary to protect its facilities, equipment, and personnel. The Company will notify the Customer promptly if there is any need for further corrective action. Within (10) days of receiving this notice, the Customer must take such action. If the Customer fails to do this, the Company may take whatever additional action is deemed necessary, including the suspension of service, to protect its facilities, equipment, and personnel from harm.

CANCELLED

APR 0.5 2000

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 1 4 2000

Issued:

## Missouri Fublic Service Commission

#### 1.8 Payment Arrangements

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

#### 1.8.1 Advance Payments

To safeguard its interests, the Company may require a Customer to make an advance payment before services and facilities are furnished. The advance payment will not exceed an amount up to two months of estimated monthly usage charges. In addition, where special construction is involved, the advance payment may also include an amount equal to the estimated non-recurring charges for the special construction and recurring charges (if any) for a period to be set between the Company and the Customer. The advance payment will be credited to the Customer's initial bill.

#### 1.8.2 Deposits

The Company does not require a deposit payment to provide service.

#### 1.8.3 Payments for Service

The Customer is responsible for the payment of all charges for facilities and services furnished by the Company to the Customer.

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

By 70-2004-0283

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

-\_NGEPSBHRADIS--FILED JAN 142000

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 1 4 2000

Issued:

#### Missouri Public Service Commission

### 1.8 Payment Arrangements

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

#### 1.8.4 Billing and Collection of Charges

The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges for facilities and services furnished, including charges for services originated, or charges accepted, at such facilities. Customer responsibility also includes charges associated with the fraudulent use of facilities and services by the Customer or any end users of the Customer's service. All bills are payable at the Company's business offices.

- A) At such time as the Company completes installation or connection of the necessary facilities and/or equipment to provide services, the Company shall conduct appropriate tests thereon. Upon successful completion of such tests, the Company shall notify the Customer that such services, are available for use, and the date of such notice shall be called the "Service Date" and shall be the starting date for billing.
- B) Customer shall pay the amounts as specified in the tariff for the Services. Nonrecurring charges, including construction, are due in advance. Fixed recurring charges shall be billed in advance after the Service date is determined and will be due no later than fifteen (15) days after the date the invoice was presented to Customer. Variable recurring charges and other charges shall be billed as incurred, and will be due no later than fifteen (15) days after the date the invoice was presented to Customer. Any amount not received within said fifteen (15) day period will be subject to the Company's standard late payment charge. Customer agrees to review each invoice promptly and to notify the Company of any discrepancies within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice.
- C) Any prorated bill shall use a thirty (30) day month to calculate the pro-rata amount. Prorating shall apply only to recurring charges. All nonrecurring and usage charges incurred during the billing period shall be billed in addition to prorated amounts.
- D) Recurring charges for all services are billed monthly, in advance, for one (1) month's minimum charge.

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

By 7D-2004-0283
Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

- Missouth Philips 00-1/1 FILED JAN 14 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 14 2000

#### Missouri Public Service Commission

1.8 Payment Arrangements (continued)

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

#### 1.8.4 <u>Billing and Collection of Charges (continued)</u>

E) Bills are due and payable on the date of presentation. A late payment charge, as described below, will be applied if payment is not received by the Company on or before the late payment date, which date will be prominently displayed on the Customer's bill. The late payment date will be at least fifteen (15) days after the date of presentation on the billing envelope. The Company shall credit payments within twenty-four (24) hours of receipt to avoid assessing late payment charges incorrectly.

A late payment charge of 1.5% applies to each Customer's bill when the previous month's bill has not been paid in full within fifteen (15) days after presentment of the bill, leaving an unpaid balance carried forward. The percentage late payment charge is applied to the total unpaid amount carried forward and is included in the total amount due on the current bill.

If payment for a current bill is received by the Company before the bill's due date, but for technical or other reasons the payment is not applied to the Customer's account prior to the issuance of a subsequent bill, the Customer shall not be liable for any late payment charge assessed on the payment amount.

A Customer shall not be liable for any Late Payment Charge applicable to a disputed portion of that Customer's bill, so long as the Customer pays the undisputed portion of the bill and enters into bona fide negotiations to resolve the dispute on a timely basis.

F) Checks presented in payment for services and subsequently returned to the Company from the Customer's financial institution for "Non-Sufficient Funds" or other reasons will incur a nonrecurring charge of \$20.00 per Customer, per check, plus applicable bank fees:

Customer will be placed on a "cash only" basis upon receipt of two (2) returned checks within a twelve (12)-month period of time. "Cash only" is herein defined as cashier's checks, U.S. currency, or money orders.

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

Receipt of a subsequently dishonored negotiable instrument in response to a notice of discontinuance shall not constitute payment of a Customer's account and the Company will not be required to issue additional notice prior to discontinuance. However, three (3) banking days must be allowed for redemption of such instrument.

By 7D-2004-0283
Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

0 0 - 1 4 1 2000 FILED JAN 14 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 14 2000

Issued:

#### Missouri Public Service Cammission

1.8 Payment Arrangements (continued)

**RECD FEB 2 5 2000** 

- 1.8.4. <u>Billing and Collection of Charges</u> (continued)
  - G) Notices to discontinue service for nonpayment of bills shall be provided in writing by first class mail to the Customer not less than ten (10) calendar days prior to termination. Each notice shall include all of the following information:
    - 1) The name and address of the Customer whose account is delinquent. (T)
    - 2) The amount that is delinquent. (T)
    - 3) The date when payment or arrangements for payment are required in order to avoid termination. (T)
    - 4) The procedure the Customer may use to initiate a complaint or to request an investigation concerning service or charges. (T)
    - 5) The procedure the Customer may use to request amortization of the unpaid charges. (T)
    - 6) The telephone number of a representative of the Company, who can provide additional information or institute arrangements for payment.
    - 7) Local service may not be discontinued for nonpayment of charges for other unregulated competitive services.

CANCELLED

Missouri Public Service Commission

MAR 1 4 2004

FILED APR 0 5 2000

By 77) - 2004 - 0283
Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

Issued: February 25, 2000

Effective: April 5, 2000

#### Payment Arrangements (continued) 1.8

# Missouri Public Service Commission

### Billing and Collection of Charges (continued)

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

- G) Notices to discontinue service for nonpayment of bills shall be provided in writing by first class mail to the Customer not less than ten (10) calendar days prior to termination. Each notice shall include all of the following information:
  - A) The name and address of the Customer whose account is delinquent.
  - B) The amount that is delinquent.
  - C) The date when payment or arrangements for payment are required in order to avoid termination.
  - D) The procedure the Customer may use to initiate a complaint or to request an investigation concerning service or charges.
  - E) The procedure the Customer may use to request amortization of the unpaid charges.
  - 6. The telephone number of a representative of the Company, who can provide additional information or institute arrangements for payment.
  - 7. Local service may not be discontinued for nonpayment of charges for other unregulated competitive services.

## **CANCELL FD**

APR 0 5 2000 1ST RP 22

**Public Service Commission** MISSOURI

Missouri Public Service Commission

### 1.8 <u>Payment Arrangements</u> (continued)

1.8.5 Billing

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

#### A) General

All bills are presumed accurate, and shall be binding on the Customer unless notice of the disputed charge(s) is received by the Company within thirty (30) days from the date of the bill. For the purposes of this section, "notice" is defined as verbal or written notice to the Company, containing sufficient documentation to investigate the dispute, including the account number under which the bill has been rendered, the date of the bill, and the specific terms on the bill being disputed.

The customer is responsible for payment of all regulated charges for service furnished.

- 1) Service is provided and billed in arrears on a monthly (30 days) basis.
- 2) The Customer shall have at least 21 days from the rendition of a bill to pay the charges at which time the charges become delinquent.
- 3) The Company may require a deposit if the customer is unable to establish a good credit rating, or if the Customer has undisputed charges in two (2) of the last twelve (12) billing periods which have become delinquent.

The deposit shall not exceed estimated charges for two months' service based on the average bill during the preceding twelve months or in the case of new applicants, two months' average bill for all subscribers within a customer class. The deposit shall bear interest at a rate of a 12-month certificate of deposit and will be returned upon satisfactory payment of all undisputed charges during the last 12 (twelve) periods, or discontinuance of service. The Company will pay an interest on deposits of nine percent (9%) per year unless the Commission Orders a change in the interest rate paid annually for deposits.

4) At the time an application for service is made, an applicant may be required to pay an amount equal to at least one month's service and/or service connection charges, will be applicable to the Customer's account on the first bill rendered.

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

By 7D-2004-0283
Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

JAN 14 2000

Issued:

#### Missouri Public Service Commission

### 1.8 <u>Payment Arrangements</u> (continued)

### 1.8.5 Billing (continued)

**RECD NOV 3 0 1999** 

#### B) <u>Late Payment Charges</u>

The undisputed portions of the bill must be paid by the payment due date to avoid assessment of a 1.5% per month late payment charge on the undisputed amount.

#### C) Adjustments or Refunds to the Customer

- In the event that the Company resolves the billing dispute in favor of a Customer who has withheld payment of the disputed amount pending resolution of the disputed bill, the Company will credit the Customer's account for the disputed amount in the billing period following the resolution of the dispute.
- 2) In the event that the Company resolves the billing dispute in favor of a Customer who has paid the total amount of the disputed bill, the Company will credit the Customer's account for any overpayment by the Customer in the billing period following the resolution of the dispute.
- 3) In the event that the Company resolves the billing dispute in favor of a Customer who has paid the total amount of the disputed bill but canceled the service, the Company will issue a refund of any overpayment to the Customer.
- 4) Credit for failure of service shall be allowed only when such failure is caused by or occurs due to causes within the control of the Company.
- 5) No credit shall be allowed:
  - (a) For failure of services or facilities of customer or other carriers; or
  - (b) For failure of services or equipment caused by negligence or willful acts of customers or others.

**CANCELLED** 

O 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

MAR 1 4 2004

By TD-2004-0283
Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

1.8 <u>Payment Arrangements</u> (continued)

Missouri Public Service Cernmission

1.8.5. Billing (continued)

**RECD FEB 2 5 2000** 

- D) <u>Unresolved Billing Disputes</u>
  - In the case of a billing dispute between Customer and the Company for service furnished to the Customer, which cannot be settled to the mutual satisfaction of the Customer and the Company, the Customer should request the Company to provide an in-depth review of the disputed amount.
  - 2) If after investigation and review by the Company, a disagreement remains as to the disputed amount, the Customer may file an informal complaint with the Commission, located at 301 West High Street, Room 530, Jefferson City, MO 65101, by calling toll free at 1-800-392-4211; or the Customer may file a formal written complaint with the Commission at their mailing address: P.O. Box 360, Jefferson City, MO 65102. Also, the Missouri Office of the Public Counsel, representing the public before the Commission, has an office at 301 West High Street, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor, Jefferson City, MO 65101. The Public Counsel's telephone number is 573-751-4875.

## CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

By 70-2004-0283

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

ediated Commission

FILED APR 0 5 2000

1.8 Payment Arrangements (continued)

Wissouri Fublic Service Commission

1.8.5 Billing (continued)

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

- D) <u>Unresolved Billing Disputes</u>
  - (A) In the case of a billing dispute between Customer and the Company for service furnished to the Customer, which cannot be settled to the mutual satisfaction of the Customer and the Company, the Customer should request the Company to provide an in-depth review of the disputed amount.
  - (B) If after investigation and review by the Company, a disagreement remains as to the disputed amount, the Customer may file an informal complaint with the Commission, located at 301 West High Street, Room 530, Jefferson City, MO 65101, by calling toll free at 1-800-392-4211; or the Customer may file a formal written complaint with the Commission at their mailing address: P.O. Box 360, Jefferson City, MO 65102. Also, the Missouri Office of the Public Counsel, representing the public before the Commission, has an office at 301 West High Street, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor, Jefferson City, MO 65101. The Public Counsel's telephone number is 573-751-4875.

**CANCELLED** 

APR 0 5 2000

By |S≠ RP QS

Public Service Commission

MISSOUR PARISON.
FILED OF AN 1412000

# Missouri Public

# 1.8 <u>Payment Arrangements (continued)</u>

**RECD NOV 3 0 1999** 

#### 1.8.6 Discontinuance of Service for Cause

The Company shall, upon reasonable notice, when it can be reasonably given, have the right to suspend or curtail or discontinue service for the following reasons:

- A) For the purpose of making permanent or temporary repairs, changes or improvements in any part of its system;
- B) For compliance in good faith with any governmental order or directive notwithstanding such order or directive subsequently may be held to be invalid;
- C) The Company may discontinue service under the following circumstances, provided suitable notice has been given to the customer, as required.
  - 1) Nonpayment of any sum due to the Company for services for more than twenty-eight (28) days beyond the date of rendition of the bill for such service;
  - 2) A violation of or failure to comply with any regulation governing the furnishing of service; or
  - 3) An order of a court or other government authority having jurisdiction which prohibits the Company from furnishing service; or
  - 4) Failure to post a required deposit;
  - 5) Material representation of identity in obtaining service or the use in such a manner that in the opinion of the Company constitutes fraud or abuse.
- D) Service shall not be disconnected unless written notice by first class mail is sent or delivered to the customer at least five (5) days prior to the date of the proposed discontinuance. At least 24 hours preceding discontinuance, a reasonable effort shall be made to contact the customer to advise them of the proposed discontinuance and what steps must be taken to avoid it.

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

By 71)-2004-1283
Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

Sonico Cammidalor 0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

JAN 14 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

# Missouri Public Service Commission

# 1.8 Payment Arrangements (continued)

**RECD NOV 3 0 1999** 

# 1.8.6. <u>Discontinuance of Service for Cause</u> (continued)

- E) For any of the following acts of omissions on the part of the Customer:
  - Nonpayment of a valid bill due for service furnished at a present or previous location. The Customer(s) of record whose name(s)appears on the bill shall be held responsible for utility service rendered. However, nonpayment for business service shall not be a reason for discontinuance of residential service, except in cases of diversion of service, and service shall not be discontinued for nonpayment of repair charges, merchandise charges, or other non-tariff contracted service charges between the Customer and the Company, nor shall notice threatening such discontinuance be given;
  - 2) Tampering with any facilities of the Company;
  - 3) Fraudulent representation in relation to the use of service;
  - 4) Customer moving from the premises, unless the Customer requests that the service be moved to Customer's new location.
  - 5) Providing a Company's service to others without approval of the Company;
  - 6) Failure to make or increase an advance payment or deposit as provided for in these rules or the Company's tariff;
  - 7) Refusal to contract for service where such contract is required,
  - 8) Connecting and operating in such manner as to produce disturbing effects on the service of the Company or other Customers;
  - 9) Failure of the Customer to comply with any terms and conditions contained in the Company's tariff;
  - 10) Where the condition of the Customer's installation presents a hazard to life or property;
  - 11) Failure of Customer to repair any faulty facility of the Customer.

CANCELLED

>=\√:€€©&m##869o¤ 0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

MAR 1 4 2004

By TD-2004-0283
Public Service Commission

JAN 1 4 2000

Effective:

NOV 3 0 1999

Issued:

Patrick M. Green, Vice President - Carrier Relations

# Missouri Public Service Commission

1.8 <u>Payment Arrangements</u> (continued)

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

- 1.8.6. <u>Discontinuance of Service for Cause</u> (continued)
  - F) Notice of the proposed discontinuance is provided pursuant to the rules listed within.
  - G) Service is not initially discontinued on any Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or any other day Company representatives are not available to serve Customers.
  - F) For refusal of reasonable access to Customer's premises for necessary purposes in connection with rendering of service, including meter installation, reading or testing, or the maintenance or removal of the Company's property.

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

By TD-2004-0283
Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 1 4 2000

Issued:

# **SECTION 1 - RULES**

Missouri Public Service Commission

Payment Arrangements (continued) 1.8

MAR 1 4 2004

Notice 1.8.7

By TD-2004-0283 Public Service Commission

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

Notice to Company for Cancellation of Service A)

> Customers desiring to terminate service shall provide Company proper notice of desire to terminate service. A Customer wishing to discontinue service must give notice to that effect. Notice to discontinue service will not relieve a Customer from any minimum or guaranteed payment under any contract or rate.

#### Notice of Discontinuance B)

- 1) The Customer shall be given a period of at least fifteen (15) days for payment after the postmark date indicated on the envelope in which the bill was transmitted. In the absence of a postmark, the burden of proving the date of mailing shall be upon the Customer. When a Customer mails any payment for the net amount of a bill for service, and such payment is received at the Company's office not more than two full business days after the due date printed on the bill, the Customer shall be deemed to have made timely payment. A public utility may discontinue service for non-payment of bills provided it gives the Customer, at least ten (10) days written notice of its intention to discontinue. The notice of discontinuance shall not be served until the expiration of the said fifteen (15) day period. A new notice shall be served by the Company each time it intends to discontinue service for nonpayment of a bill except that no additional notice shall be required when, in response to a notice of discontinuance, payment by check is subsequently dishonored. However, in the case of fraud, illegal use, or when it is clearly indicated that the Customer is preparing to leave, immediate payment of accounts may be required.
- 2) On all notices of discontinuance to residential Customers, there shall be included:
- (a) A statement that the Company is subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission and the address and telephone number of the Commission.
- (b) A statement that in the event the Customer is either unable to make payment of a bill or wishes to contest a bill the Customer should contact the Company. The notice shall contain information sufficient for the Customer to make appropriate inquiry.

00-141 FILED JAN 14 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 142000

# SECTION 1 - RULES AND REANCE LAND

1.8 <u>Payment Arrangements</u> (continued)

MAR 1 4 2004

Service Commission

1.8.7. <u>Notice</u>

By TD-2004-0283

- Public Service Commission RECD FEB 2 5 2000

  Notice of Discontinuance (continued MISSOURI
  - c) A statement that if a Customer is presently unable to pay an outstanding bill, the Customer may contact the Company to discuss the possibility of entering into a reasonable deferred payment agreement. In the case of a residential Customer receiving more than one service from the Company, the statement shall state that deferred payment agreements are available separately for each Company service.

# 1.8.8. <u>Cancellation of Application for Service</u>

- (A) Applications for service may not be canceled later than three (3) days after (T) submission unless the Company otherwise agrees. Where the Company permits the Customer to cancel an application for service prior to the start of service or prior to any special construction, no charges will be imposed except for those specified below.
- (B) Where, prior to cancellation by the Customer, the Company incurs any expenses in installing the service or preparing to install the service that it would not have incurred, a charge equal to the costs the Company incurred, less net salvage, shall apply, but in no case shall this charge exceed the sum of the charge for the minimum period of service ordered, including installation charges, and all charges others levy against the Company that would have been chargeable to the Customer had service begun.
- (C) Where the Company incurs any expense in connection with special (T) construction, or where special arrangements of facilities or equipment have begun, before the Company receives a cancellation notice, a charge equal to the costs incurred, less net salvage, applies. In such cases the charge will be based on such elements as the cost of the equipment, facilities, and material, the supervision, general and administrative expense, other provision for return on investment, and any other costs associated with the special construction or arrangements.

# 1.8.9. Changes in Service Requested

FILED APR 0 5 2000

If the Customer makes or requests material changes in circuit engineering, equipment specifications, service parameters, premises locations, or otherwise materially modifies any provision of the application for service, the Customer's installation fee shall be adjusted accordingly.

Issued: February 25, 2000

#### Missouri Public Service Commission

# 1.8 <u>Payment Arrangements</u> (continued)

**REC'D NOV 30 1999** 

#### 1.8.7 Notice

- B) Notice of Discontinuance (continued)
  - c) A statement that if a Customer is presently unable to pay an outstanding bill, the Customer may contact the Company to discuss the possibility of entering into a reasonable deferred payment agreement. In the case of a residential Customer receiving more than one service from the Company, the statement shall state that deferred payment agreements are available separately for each Company service.

# 1.8.8 Cancellation of Application for Service

- C) Applications for service may not be canceled later than three (3) days after submission unless the Company otherwise agrees. Where the Company permits the Customer to cancel an application for service prior to the start of service or prior to any special construction, no charges will be imposed except for those specified below.
- D) Where, prior to cancellation by the Customer, the Company incurs any expenses in installing the service or preparing to install the service that it would not have incurred, a charge equal to the costs the Company incurred, less net salvage, shall apply, but in no case shall this charge exceed the sum of the charge for the minimum period of service ordered, including installation charges, and all charges others levy against the Company that would have been chargeable to the Customer had service begun.

Where the Company incurs any expense in connection with special construction, or where special arrangements of facilities or equipment have begun, before the Company receives a cancellation notice, a charge equal to the costs incurred, less net salvage, applies. In such cases the charge will be based on such elements as the cost of the equipment, facilities, and material, the supervision, general and administrative expense, other provision for return on investment, and any other costs associated with the special construction or arrangements.

# 1.8.9 Changes in Service Requested

If the Customer makes or requests material changes in circuit engineering, equipment specifications, service parameters, premises locations, or otherwise materially modifies any provision of the application for service, the Customer's installation feet shall be adjusted accordingly.

NOV 3 0 1999

FILFD JAN 14 2000

JAN 14 2000

Issued:

Effective:

ANCELLED

Missouri Fublic Service Commission

# 1.9 Allowances for Interruptions in Service

**REC'D NOV 30 1999** 

#### 1.9.1 General

- A) A credit allowance will be given when service is interrupted. A service is interrupted when it becomes inoperative to the Customer, e.g., the Customer is unable to transmit or receive, because of a failure of a component furnished by the Company under this tariff.
- B) An interruption period begins when the Customer reports a service, facility or circuit to be inoperative and, if necessary, releases it for testing and repair. An interruption period ends when the service, facility or circuit is operative.
- C) If the Customer reports a service, facility or circuit to be interrupted but declines to release it for testing and repair, the service, facility or circuit will be considered to be impaired but not interrupted. No credit allowances will be made for a service, facility or circuit considered by the Company to be impaired. **CANCELLED**

# 1.9.2 <u>Limitations of Allowances</u>

MAR 1 4 2004

No credit allowance will be made for any interruption in service:

By TD-2004-0283

Public Service Commission

- A) Due to the negligence of or noncompliance with the provisions of this tariff by any person or entity other than the Company, including but not limited to the Customer, authorized user, or other common carriers connected to the service of the Company;
- B) Due to the failure of power, equipment, systems, connections or services not provided by the Company;
- C) Due to circumstances or causes beyond the control of the Company (including, but not limited to, civil disorder, fire, flood, storm or other natural or man-made disasters or elements, or labor problems);
- D) During any period in which the Company is not given full and free access to its facilities and equipment for the purposes of investigating and correcting interruptions;
- E) During any period in which the Customer continues to use the service on an impaired basis;
- F) During any period when the Customer has released service to the Company for maintenance purposes or for implementation of a Gustomer order for a change in service arrangements;

NOV 3 0 1999

FILED JAN 1 4 2000

JAN 1 4 2000 Effective:

Issued:

Missouri Public Service Commission

1.9 Allowances for Interruptions in Service (continued)

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

- 1.9.2 <u>Limitations of Allowances</u> (continued)
  - G) During any period that occurs or continues due to the Customer's failure to authorize replacement of any equipment, facility or other element of special construction.

#### 1.9.3 Use of Another Means of Communications

If the Customer elects to use another means of communications during the period of interruption, the Customer must pay the charges for the alternative service used.

#### 1.9.4 Cancellation for Service Interruption

Cancellation or termination for service interruption is permitted only if any circuit experiences a single continuous outage of 24 hours or more, or cumulative service credits equaling 72 hours in a continuous 12-month period. The right to cancel service under this provision applies only to the single circuit which has been subject to the outage or cumulative service credits.

#### 1.10 <u>Cancellation of Service/Termination</u>

If a Customer cancels a Service Order or terminates service before the completion of the term for any reason whatsoever other than a service interruption, Customer agrees to pay Company termination liability charges, which are defined below. These charges shall become due and owing as of the effective date of the cancellation or termination.

#### 1.10.1 Termination Liability

CANCELLED

Customer's termination liability for cancellation of service shall be equal to:

MAR 1 4 2004

- A) all unpaid Non-recurring charges reasonably expended by Company to establish service to Customer; plus

  A) all unpaid Non-recurring charges reasonably expended by Company to establish public Service Commission MISSOURI
- B) any disconnection, early cancellation or termination charges reasonably incurred and paid to third parties by Company on behalf of Customer; plus
- C) all Recurring Charges specified in the applicable Service Order for the balance of the then current term discounted at a rate determined by the Commission; minus
- D) a reasonable allowance for costs avoided by the Company as a direct result of Customer's cancellation.

NOV 3 0 1999

FILED JAN 14 2000

JAN 14 2000

Issued:

# 1.11 <u>Customer Liability for Unauthorized Use of Network</u>



# 1.11.1. <u>Unauthorized Use of the Network</u>

**REC'D FEB 2 5 2000** 

- A) Unauthorized use of the Network occurs when: (1) a person or entity that does not have actual, apparent, or implied authority to use the Network, obtains the Company's services provided under this tariff; or (2) a person or entity that otherwise has actual, apparent, or implied authority to use the Network, makes fraudulent use of the Network to obtain the Company's services provided under this tariff, or uses specific services that are not authorized.
- B) The Customer is responsible for payment of any charges related to the suspension and/or termination of service, and any charges for reconnection of service, incurred as a result of unauthorized use of the Network.
  - 1) Using or attempting to use the Network with the intent to avoid payment, (T) either in whole or part, of any of the Company's tariffed charges by either rearranging, tampering with, or making connections not authorized by this tariff to any service components used to furnish the Company's services or using fraudulent means or devices, tricks, schemes, false or invalid numbers, false credit devices or electronic devices;
  - 2) Toll Free callers using the Network with the intent of gaining access to (T) a Customer's outbound calling capabilities on an unauthorized basis; and
  - 3) Using fraudulent means or devices, tricks, schemes, false or invalid (T) numbers, false credit devices or electronic devices to defraud or mislead callers.
- C) Customers are advised that use of telecommunications equipment and services, including that provided under this tariff, carries a risk of various forms of telecommunications fraud (including, but not limited to, fraud and/or toll fraud perpetrated by Users who gain access to a Customer's facilities, account numbers, security or authorized codes, etc.). Customers should take all necessary steps to restrict access to their facilities, including the equipment and services provided hereunder, and to detect and prevent unauthorized use of the equipment and services provided by the Company under this tariff.

# CANCELLED

Missouri Public

MAR 1 4 2004

By 7D - 2004-0283
Public Service Commission

FILED APR 0 5 2000

Issued: February 25, 2000

Missouri Fublic Service Commission

1.11 Customer Liability for Unauthorized Use of Network

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

#### 1.11.1 Unauthorized Use of the Network

- A) Unauthorized use of the Network occurs when: (1) a person or entity that does not have actual, apparent, or implied authority to use the Network, obtains the Company's services provided under this tariff; or (2) a person or entity that otherwise has actual, apparent, or implied authority to use the Network, makes fraudulent use of the Network to obtain the Company's services provided under this tariff, or uses specific services that are not authorized.
- B) The Customer is responsible for payment of any charges related to the suspension and/or termination of service, and any charges for reconnection of service, incurred as a result of unauthorized use of the Network.
  - A) Using or attempting to use the Network with the intent to avoid payment, either in whole or part, of any of the Company's tariffed charges by either rearranging, tampering with, or making connections not authorized by this tariff to any service components used to furnish the Company's services or using fraudulent means or devices, tricks, schemes, false or invalid numbers, false credit devices or electronic devices;
  - B) Toll Free callers using the Network with the intent of gaining access to a Customer's outbound calling capabilities on an unauthorized basis; and
  - C) Using fraudulent means or devices, tricks, schemes, false or invalid numbers, false credit devices or electronic devices to defraud or mislead callers.
- C) Customers are advised that use of telecommunications equipment and services, including that provided under this tariff, carries a risk of various forms of telecommunications fraud (including, but not limited to, fraud and/or toll fraud perpetrated by Users who gain access to a Customer's facilities, account numbers, security or authorized codes, etc.). Customers should take all necessary steps to restrict access to their facilities, including the equipment and services provided hereunder, and to detect and prevent unauthorized use of the equipment and services provided by the Company under this tariff.

**CANCELLED** 

APR 05 2000 15上尺P 33

Public Service Commission

Service Commission C C - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

1.11 Customer Liability for Unauthorized Use of Network (continued)

#### Missouri Public Service Commission

# 1.11.2 Liability for Unauthorized Use REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

- A) Except as provided for elsewhere in this tariff, the Customer is responsible for payment of all charges for services provided under this tariff furnished to the Customer or User. This responsibility is not changed due to any use, misuse, or abuse of the Customer's service or Customer-provided equipment by Users or other third parties, the Customer's employees, or the public.
- B) The Customer is responsible for payment of any charges related to the suspension and/or termination of service, and any charges for reconnection of service, incurred as a result of unauthorized use of the Network.

# **CANCELLED**

MAR 1 4 2004

By TD-2004-0283

Public Service Commission

MISSOURI

service Commission 0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 1 4 2000

Issued:

RECEIVED

1.12 <u>Use of Customer's Service by Others</u>

MAR 1 4 2004 By TD-2004-0283

MAY 1 1 2000

1.12.1. Resale and Sharing

Public Service Commission MO. Public SERVICE COMM

Any service provided under this tariff may be resold to or shared with other persons at the option of Customer, subject to compliance with any applicable laws or Commission regulations governing such resale or sharing. Customer remains solely responsible for all use of services ordered by it or billed to its telephone number(s) pursuant to this tariff, for determining who is authorized to use its services and for notifying the Company of any unauthorized use.

# 1.12.2. Transfers and Assignments

Neither the Company nor the Customer may assign or transfer its rights or duties in connection with the services and facilities provided by the Company without the written consent of the other party, except that Company may assign its rights and duties (a) to any subsidiary, parent Company or affiliate of the Company; (b) pursuant to any sale or transfer of substantially all the assets of the Company; or (c) pursuant to any financing, merger or reorganization of the Company.

#### 1.12.3. Notices and Communications

- A) The Customer shall designate on the Service Order an address to which the Company shall mail or deliver all notices and other communications, except that Customer may also designate a separate address to which the Company's bills for service shall be mailed.
- B) The Company shall designate on the Service Order an address to which the Customer shall mail or deliver all notices and other communications, except that Company may designate a separate address on each bill for service to which the Customer shall mail payment on that bill. The bill will contain both the mailing address for notices and communications as well as the address to which the payment is to be mailed.
- C) The bill will also contain for purposes of Customer's questions regarding the Customer's bill, a 24-hour Customer service number which is 1-877-452-8663. (T)
- D) The Company or the Customer shall advise the other party of any changes to the addresses designated for notices, other communications or billing, by following the procedures for giving notice set forth herein.

FILED

JUN 12 2000

Effective: June 12, 2000

MISSOURI
Public Service Commission

#### Missouri Public Service Commission

#### 1.12 Use of Customer's Service by Others

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

#### 1.12.1 Resale and Sharing

Any service provided under this tariff may be resold to or shared with other persons at the option of Customer, subject to compliance with any applicable laws or Commission regulations governing such resale or sharing. Customer remains solely responsible for all use of services ordered by it or billed to its telephone number(s) pursuant to this tariff, for determining who is authorized to use its services and for notifying the Company of any unauthorized use.

#### 1.12.2 Transfers and Assignments

Neither the Company nor the Customer may assign or transfer its rights or duties in connection with the services and facilities provided by the Company without the written consent of the other party, except that Company may assign its rights and duties (a) to any subsidiary, parent Company or affiliate of the Company; (b) pursuant to any sale or transfer of substantially all the assets of the Company; or (c) pursuant to any financing, merger or reorganization of the Company.

#### 1.12.3 Notices and Communications

- A) The Customer shall designate on the Service Order an address to which the Company shall mail or deliver all notices and other communications, except that Customer may also designate a separate address to which the Company's bills for service shall be mailed.
- B) The Company shall designate on the Service Order an address to which the Customer shall mail or deliver all notices and other communications, except that Company may designate a separate address on each bill for service to which the Customer shall mail payment on that bill. The bill will contain both the mailing address for notices and communications as well as the address to which the payment is to be mailed.
- C) The bill will also contain for purposes of Customer's questions regarding the Customer's bill, a 24 hour Customer service number which is 1-800-462-6823.
- D) The Company or the Customer shall advise the other party of any changes to the addresses designated for notices, other communications or billing, by following the procedures for giving notice set forth herein.

**CANCELLED** 

JUN 1 2 2000 15t RP 35

Public Service Commission MISSOURI

50 Pies estataision 0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000 JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

# Missouri Public Service Commission

#### 1.13 Taxes and Surcharges

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

#### 1.13.1 Customer Responsibility

The Customer is responsible for the payment of any sales, use, excise, access or other local, state and federal taxes, charges or surcharges (excluding taxes on the Company's net income) imposed on or based upon the provision, sale, or use of Company's services.

All such taxes and surcharges shall be itemized on the Company's bills to the Customer.

#### 1.13.2 Excise Taxes and Funds

Company agrees to collect and remit social program excise taxes levied upon all end users of regulated telecommunications services pursuant to the rules of the Commission. Company also agrees to collect and remit relevant federal taxes.

#### 1.13.3 Sales, Use and Excise Taxes

In addition to all recurring, non-recurring, usage or special charges, Customer shall also be responsible for and shall pay all applicable federal, state, and local sales, use, and excise taxes.

### 1.13.4 Taxes and Fees Chargeable to Customers

In the event a municipality, county or other political subdivision of the State of Missouri. imposes upon, or collects or receives from, the Company, any license, occupation, franchise, privilege, inspection or other similar tax or fee, or collects or receives any payment from the Company based upon an increase in any other tax, fee or assessment ratio, of whatever nature or kind, whether in a lump sum, or at a flat rate, or based on receipts, or based on property value, or based on poles, wires, conduits or other facilities, or otherwise, the amount of such tax, fee or payment, to the extent not included as a part of the cost of furnishing services in the fixing of the rates and charges for such services by the Commission, shall be added to the sales price of the Company's service and billed, insofar as practical, pro rata to the Company's Customers receiving service within the municipality, county or other political subdivision collecting such taxes or receiving such payment.

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

By TD-2004-028300

Public Service Commission

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 142000

Issued:

Missouri Public service Commission

1.13 <u>Taxes and Surcharges</u> (continued)

1.13.5 Charges and Fees (continued)

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

All Charges and fees subject to the Commission jurisdiction, except taxes and franchise fees, will be submitted to the Commission for prior approval.

CANCELLED

#### **SECTION 2 - DEFINITIONS**

MAR 1 4 2004 By 7D-2004-0283

Certain terms used generally throughout this tariff are described below.

Public Service Commission

Access Lines: A Telephone facility which permits access to and from both the Customer's premises and the telephone exchange or serving central office.

Add/Drop Multiplexing: A multiplexing function that allows lower level signals to be added or dropped from an Optical Carrier (OC) channel.

Agent: A business representative, whose function is to bring about, modify, affect, accept performance of, or terminate contractual obligations between the Company, its applicants or Customers.

<u>Applicant</u>: A person who applies for telecommunications service. Includes persons seeking reconnection of their service after Company-initiated termination.

Application: A request made orally or in writing for telecommunications service.

<u>Auxiliary Line Service</u>: Auxiliary line service is additional individual line service furnished to supplement the main individual line service of a Customer.

<u>Building</u>: A structure under one roof and of such a nature that it can in itself fulfill the requirements of a business or residence establishment, or both; or two or more structures that are connected by means of enclosed passageways (overhead bridges, subways, or a ground level) or common basements, permitting access from one building to the other, that are suitable for the routing, placing, and proper protection of inside cable and wire type facilities. In no case can conduit be considered an enclosed passageway.

Business Service: Determination as to whether or not Customer's service should be classified as Business Service will be based on the character or use to be made of the service. The practice of advertising a telephone number in newspapers, business cards, or on trucks shall be a contributing, but not an exclusive factor in determining the classification of service. Service will be classified as Business service where the use is primarily or substantially of a business, professional, institutional, or otherwise occupational nature.

O 0 - 1 4 2000

FILED JAN 14 2000

JAN 14 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

Weivies Commission

#### **SECTION 2 - DEFINITIONS**

Central Office Area: The area within which Customers' lines are connected to the central office established by the Company to serve that area. More than one central office may be located in the same building.

<u>Central Office</u>: A switching unit in a telephone system which provides service to the general public, having the necessary equipment and operating arrangements for terminating and interconnecting Customer lines and trunks or trunks only. There may be more than one central office in a building or exchange.

Channel: A path (or paths) for electrical communication between two or more stations or telephone Company offices and furnished in such a manner as the telephone Company may elect.

<u>Class of Service</u>: The various categories of service generally available to the Customer, such as business, residential, or paystation service. CANCELLED

Commission: The Missouri Public Service Commission

Company: JATO Operating Corp.

MAR 1 4 2004

By 7D-2004-0283(T)
Public Service Commission

Connecting Arrangement: The equipment provided by the Company to accomplished the Company to accomplish the Company to accomplished the Company to accomplish the Company the Company to accomplish the Company to accomplish the Company the Company to accomplish the Company the connection of Customer-provided facilities with the facilities of the Company; or facilities of the Company with the facilities of other Companies.

Cost: The cost of labor and materials, which includes appropriate amounts to cover the Company's general operating and administrative expenses.

Construction Charge: A separate nonrecurring charge made for the construction of facilities in excess of those contemplated under the rates quoted in this tariff.

Continuous Property: Continuous property is defined as plot of ground, together with any buildings thereon, occupied by the Customer; which is not separated by public thoroughfares or by property occupied by others.

Contract: The agreement between a Customer and the Company under which service and facilities are furnished in accordance with the applicable provisions of the tariffs.

Customer: A person, firm or corporation which orders service and is responsible for the payment of charges and compliance with terms and conditions of this tariff.

Customer-Provided Equipment: All communications systems, devices, apparatus and their associate wiring, provided by Customer.

<u>Date of Presentation</u>: Postmark date on billing envelope.

FILED APR 0 5 2000

Issued: February 25, 2000

Central Office Area: The area within which Customers' lines are connected to the central office established by the Company to serve that area. More than one central office may be located in the same building.

Central Office: A switching unit in a telephone system which provides service to the general public, having the necessary equipment and operating arrangements for terminating and interconnecting Customer lines and trunks or trunks only. There may be more than one central office in a building or exchange.

Channel: A path (or paths) for electrical communication between two or more stations or telephone Company offices and furnished in such a manner as the telephone Company may elect.

Class of Service: The various categories of service generally available to the Customer, such as business, residential, or paystation service. Missouri Fublic Service Commission

Commission: The Missouri Public Service Commission

Company: JATO Operating Two Corp.

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

Connecting Arrangement: The equipment provided by the Company to accomplish the direct connection of Customer-provided facilities with the facilities of the Company; or facilities of the Company with the facilities of other Companies.

Cost: The cost of labor and materials, which includes appropriate amounts to cover the Company's general operating and administrative expenses.

Construction Charge: A separate nonrecurring charge made for the construction of facilities in excess of those contemplated under the rates quoted in this tariff.

Continuous Property: Continuous property is defined as plot of ground, together with any buildings thereon, occupied by the Customer; which is not separated by public thoroughfares or by property occupied by others.

Contract: The agreement between a Customer and the Company under which service and facilities are furnished in accordance with the applicable provisions of the tariffs.

Customer: A person, firm or corporation which orders service and is responsible for the payment of charges and compliance with terms and conditions of this tariff.

Customer-Provided Equipment: All communications systems, devices, apparatus and their associate wiring, provided by Customer.

Date of Presentation: Postmark date on billing envelope.

00-141 FILED JAN 14 2000

**SECTION 2 - DEFINITIONS** 

CANCELLER

NOV 3 0 1999

Issued:

Patrick M. Green, Vice President - Carrier Relations 0.5 2000 Effective: JATO Operating Corp.

Denver, CO 80202

1099 18th Street, Suite 22 Public Service Commission

# RECEIVED

#### SECTION 2 - DEFINITIONS

Disconnect Notice: The written notice sent to a Customer following billing, notifying him that his service will be discontinued if charges are not satisfied by the date specified on the notice MO. PUBLIC SERVICE COMM

**(M)** 

(M)

<u>Drop Wire</u>: Wires between an open wire lead, aerial or underground cable terminal and the point of entrance to the premises in which the Customer's telecommunications service is located. The drop wire terminates in the protector or its equivalent.

End Office: The term "end office" denotes the LEC switching system office or serving wire center where Customer station loops are terminated for purposes of interconnection to each other and/or to trunks.

Entrance Facilities: Those facilities from the property line to the point at which the cable enters the premises and terminates at the protector, or denotes the dedicated Local Interconnection Service (LIS) transport facility from another LEC's POI to the Company.

<u>Facilities</u>: Includes, in the aggregate or otherwise, but is not limited to, the following:

channels

lines

MAR 1 4 2004

apparatus

devices

equipment

accessories

By TD-2004-0283

communications

paths systems

Public Service Commission

which are provided by the Company and utilized by it in the furnishing of telecommunications services or which are provided by a Customer and used for telecommunications purposes.

<u>Facilities-Based LEC</u>: A LEC which directly owns controls, operates, or manages conduits, ducts, poles, wires, cables, instruments, switches, appurtenances, or appliances in connection with or to facilitate communications within the local exchange portion of the public switched network.

Fiber Optic Cable: A thin filament of glass with a protective outer coating through which a light beam carrying communications signals may be transmitted by means of multiple internal reflections to a receiver, which translates the message.

<u>Individual Case Basis (ICB)</u>: A service arrangement in which the regulations, rates and charges are developed based on the specific circumstances of the case.

<u>Installation Charge</u>: A nonrecurring charge made at the time of installation of Communications service which may apply in place of or in addition to service charges and other applicable charges for service or equipment. FILED

Effective: June 12, 2000

MISSOURI **Public Service Commission** 

# SONICE CONTINUE

#### **SECTION 2 - DEFINITIONS**

REC'D FEB 2 5 2000

Disconnect Notice: The written notice sent to a Customer following billing, notifying him that his service will be discontinued if charges are not satisfied by the date specified on the notice.

Tariff: The rates, charges, rules and regulations adopted and filed by the Company with the Commission.

Drop Wire: Wires between an open wire lead, aerial or underground cable terminal and the point of entrance to the premises in which the Customer's telecommunications service is located. The drop wire terminates in the protector or its equivalent.

End Office: The term "end office" denotes the LEC switching system office or serving wire center where Customer station loops are terminated for purposes of interconnection to each other and/or to trunks.

Entrance Facilities: Those facilities from the property line to the point at which the cable enters the premises and terminates at the protector, or denotes the dedicated Local Interconnection Service (LIS) transport facility from another LEC's POI to the Company.

Facilities: Includes, in the aggregate or otherwise, but is not limited to, the following CANCELLED

channels lines apparatus devices equipment accessories communications paths systems

JUN 1 2 2000 By 2 Pop R P 39
Public Service Commission

which are provided by the Company and utilized by it in the furnishing of telecommunications services or which are provided by a Customer and used for telecommunications purposes.

Facilities-Based LEC: A LEC which directly owns controls, operates, or manages conduits, ducts, poles, wires, cables, instruments, switches, appurtenances, or appliances in connection with or to facilitate communications within the local exchange portion of the public switched network.

Fiber Optic Cable: A thin filament of glass with a protective outer coating through which a light beam carrying communications signals may be transmitted by means of multiple internal reflections to a receiver, which translates the message.

Individual Case Basis (ICB): A service arrangement in which the regulations, rates and charges are developed based on the specific circumstances of the case.

<u>Installation Charge</u>: A nonrecurring charge made at the time of installation of Communications service which may apply in place of or in addition to service charges and other applicable charges for service or equipment. sorvice Commission(M)

<u>FII FN APR 0.5 2000</u>

<u>Disconnect Notice</u>: The written notice sent to a Customer following billing, notifying him that his service will be discontinued if charges are not satisfied by the date specified on the notice.

Tariff: The rates, charges, rules and regulations adopted and filed by the Company with the Commission.

<u>Drop Wire</u>: Wires between an open wire lead, aerial or underground cable terminal and the point of entrance to the premises in which the Customer's telecommunications service is located. The drop wire terminates in the protector or its equivalent.

<u>End Office</u>: The term "end office" denotes the LEC switching system office or serving wire center where Customer station loops are terminated for purposes of interconnection to each other and/or to trunks.

Entrance Facilities: Those facilities from the property line to the point at which the cable enters the premises and terminates at the protector, or denotes the dedicated Local Interconnection Service (LIS) transport facility from another LEC's POI to the Company.

Facilities: Includes, in the aggregate or otherwise but is not limited to, the following:

channels lines apparatus devices equipment accessories

APR 05 2000

Missouri Public Service Commission

**REC'D** NOV 3 0 1999

communications paths systems ublic Service Commission

which are provided by the Company and utilized by it in the furnishing of telecommunications services or which are provided by a Customer and used for telecommunications purposes.

<u>Facilities-Based LEC</u>: A LEC which directly owns controls, operates, or manages conduits, ducts, poles, wires, cables, instruments, switches, appurtenances, or appliances in connection with or to facilitate communications within the local exchange portion of the public switched network.

<u>Fiber Optic Cable</u>: A thin filament of glass with a protective outer coating through which a light beam carrying communications signals may be transmitted by means of multiple internal reflections to a receiver, which translates the message.

<u>Individual Case Basis (ICB)</u>: A service arrangement in which the regulations, rates and charges are developed based on the specific circumstances of the case.

<u>Installation Charge</u>: A nonrecurring charge made at the time of installation of Communications service which may apply in place of or in addition to service charges and other applicable charges for service or equipment.

<u>Interface</u>: The term "Interface" denotes that point on the premises of the Customer at which provision is made for connection of other than Company provided facilities to <u>facilities</u> provided by the Company.

NOV 3 0 1999

56 NICE COMMISSION 0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 14 2000

JAN 1 4 2000

Issued:

<u>Interface</u>: The term "Interface" denotes that point on the premises of the Customer at which provision is made (M) for connection of other than Company provided facilities to facilities provided by the Company. (M)

<u>Interface Equipment</u>: Equipment provided by the Company at the interface location to accomplish the direct electrical connection of facilities provided by the Company with facilities provided by other than the Company.

Interface Jack: A connecting device provided for use as a point of demarcation between network access service and Customer-owned equipment.

Kbps: Kilobits per second, denotes thousands of bits per second.

**RECD FEB 2 5 2000** 

<u>LEC</u>: Local Exchange Carrier (LEC) refers to a local exchange carrier in an area also served by the Company.

Maintenance Visit Charge: A charge applied when the location of reported trouble is found to be in Customer-provided equipment.

Mbps: Megabits per second, denotes millions of bits per second.

Mileage: The measurement upon which charges are computed for line extensions.

<u>Minimum Contract Period</u>: The minimum length of time for which a Customer is obligated to pay for service, facilities and equipment whether or not retained by the Customer for such minimum length of time.

Node: Any Company or Customer location that is capable of performing Add/Drop Multiplexing.

<u>Nonfacilities-Based LEC</u>: A LEC which does not directly own, control, operate, or manage conduits, ducts, poles, wires, cables, instruments, switches, appurtenances, or appliances in connection with or to facilitate communications within the local exchange portion of the public switched network.

<u>Nonrecurring Charge</u>: A one-time charge associated with a specific item of equipment or service. This charge applies to installation and to subsequent modifications.

<u>Non-Sufficient Funds Check</u>: Any negotiable instrument returned by a bank, savings institution or other eligible institution which is returned by that institution with one of the following instructions: non-sufficient funds, uncollectible funds, account closed, account frozen, no account.

<u>Person</u>: A natural person, firm partnership, corporation, association, municipality, cooperative, organization, government agency, real estate trust, or other legal entity.

CANCELLED

(M)

(M)

MAR 1 4 2004 MISSOUR PUBLISHED BY 7D- 2004-0283

Public Service Commission APR 0 5 2000

Issued: February 25, 2000

<u>Interface Equipment</u>: Equipment provided by the Company at the interface location to accomplish the direct electrical connection of facilities provided by the Company with facilities provided by other than the Company.

Interface Jack: A connecting device provided for use as a point of demarcation between network access service and Customer-owned equipment.

Kbps: Kilobits per second, denotes thousands of bits per second.

**REC'D NOV 3 0 1999** 

<u>LEC</u>: Local Exchange Carrier (LEC) refers to a local exchange carrier in an area also served by the Company.

Maintenance Visit Charge: A charge applied when the location of reported trouble is for Customer-provided equipment.

Mbps: Megabits per second, denotes millions of bits per second.

APR 05 2000 1st Rp40

Mileage: The measurement upon which charges are computed for line extensions. Fublic Service Commission MISSOURI

<u>Minimum Contract Period</u>: The minimum length of time for which a Customer is obligated to pay for service, facilities and equipment whether or not retained by the Customer for such minimum length of time.

Node: Any Company or Customer location that is capable of performing Add/Drop Multiplexing.

<u>Nonfacilities-Based LEC</u>: A LEC which does not directly own, control, operate, or manage conduits, ducts, poles, wires, cables, instruments, switches, appurtenances, or appliances in connection with or to facilitate communications within the local exchange portion of the public switched network.

Nonrecurring Charge: A one-time charge associated with a specific item of equipment or service. This charge applies to installation and to subsequent modifications.

<u>Non-Sufficient Funds Check</u>: Any negotiable instrument returned by a bank, savings institution or other eligible institution which is returned by that institution with one of the following instructions: non-sufficient funds, uncollectible funds, account closed, account frozen, no account.

<u>Person</u>: A natural person, firm partnership, corporation, association, municipality, cooperative, organization, government agency, real estate trust, or other legal entity.

<u>Point of Demarcation</u>: A point in a Customer's circuit to which the Company is responsible for service and beyond which the Customer is responsible for service.

Port: A facility or equipment systems or subsystem set aside for the sole use of a specific Customer.

NOV 3 0 1999

0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 14 2000

JAN 1 4 2000

Effective:

Issued:

RECEIVED

Point of Demarcation: A point in a Customer's circuit to which the Company is responsible for service and beyond which the Customer is responsible for service.

MO. PUBLIC SERVICE COMM

Port: A facility or equipment systems or subsystem set aside for the sole use of a specific Customer.

<u>Premises</u>: The space occupied by a Customer or authorized user in a building or buildings on continuous property.

<u>Recurring Charge</u>: A monthly charge to the Customer for services, facilities and equipment, which continues for the duration of the service.

<u>Registered Equipment</u>: Equipment which complies with and has been approved within the registration provisions of Part 68 of the Federal Communications Commission's Rules and Regulations.

<u>Residence Service</u>: Service where the business use, if any, is merely incidental and where the major use is of a social or domestic nature.

<u>Service Connection Charge</u>: The nonrecurring charge a Customer is required to pay at the time of the establishment of telecommunications service or subsequent additions to that service.

<u>Service Order</u>: The written request for the Company's services executed by the Customer and the Company in a format devised by the Company. The signing of a Service Order form by the Customer and acceptance by the Company initiates the respective obligations of the parties as set forth therein and pursuant to this tariff.

<u>Serving Wire Center</u>: A serving wire center denotes the wire center from which the Customer designated premises would normally obtain dial tone from the Company.

<u>Standard Network Interface</u>: The point where Company network services or facilities terminate and the Company's responsibility for installing and maintaining such services or facilities ends.

<u>Tariff</u>: The rates, charges, rules and regulations adopted and filed by the Company with the **(M)** Commission. **(M)** 

Termination: Permanent disconnection of telecommunications service.

<u>Termination Charge</u>: A charge applied under certain conditions when a contract for service is terminated by the Customer before the expiration of the minimum contract period.

CANCELLED

FILED

MAR 1 4 2004

JUN 12 2000

Public Service Commission

Public Service Commission

Issued: May 11, 2000

Effective: June 12, 2000

**RECT) FEB 2 5 2000** 

<u>Point of Demarcation</u>: A point in a Customer's circuit to which the Company is responsible for service (M) and beyond which the Customer is responsible for service. (M)

Port: A facility or equipment systems or subsystem set aside for the sole use of a specific Customer. (M)

<u>Premises</u>: The space occupied by a Customer or authorized user in a building or buildings on continuous property.

<u>Recurring Charge</u>: A monthly charge to the Customer for services, facilities and equipment, which continues for the duration of the service.

<u>Registered Equipment</u>: Equipment which complies with and has been approved within the registration provisions of Part 68 of the Federal Communications Commission's Rules and Regulations.

<u>Residence Service</u>: Service where the business use, if any, is merely incidental and where the major use is of a social or domestic nature.

<u>Service Connection Charge</u>: The nonrecurring charge a Customer is required to pay at the time of the establishment of telecommunications service or subsequent additions to that service.

<u>Service Order</u>: The written request for the Company's services executed by the Customer and the Company in a format devised by the Company. The signing of a Service Order form by the Customer and acceptance by the Company initiates the respective obligations of the parties as set forth therein and pursuant to this tariff.

<u>Serving Wire Center</u>: A serving wire center denotes the wire center from which the Customer designated premises would normally obtain dial tone from the Company.

<u>Standard Network Interface</u>: The point where Company network services or facilities terminate and the Company's responsibility for installing and maintaining such services or facilities ends.

Termination: Permanent disconnection of telecommunications service.

<u>Termination Charge</u>: A charge applied under certain conditions when a contract for service is terminated by the Customer before the expiration of the minimum contract period.

CANCELLED

JUN 1 2 2000

Public Service Commission

Missouri Fublican

FILED APR 0 5 2000

Issued: February 25, 2000



REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

<u>Premises</u>: The space occupied by a Customer or authorized user in a building or buildings on continuous property.

<u>Recurring Charge</u>: A monthly charge to the Customer for services, facilities and equipment, which continues for the duration of the service.

Registered Equipment: Equipment which complies with and has been approved within the registration provisions of Part 68 of the Federal Communications Commission's Rules and Regulations.

<u>Residence Service</u>: Service where the business use, if any, is merely incidental and where the major use is of a social or domestic nature.

<u>Service Connection Charge</u>: The nonrecurring charge a Customer is required to pay at the time of the establishment of telecommunications service or subsequent additions to that service.

<u>Service Order</u>: The written request for the Company's services executed by the Customer and the Company in a format devised by the Company. The signing of a Service Order form by the Customer and acceptance by the Company initiates the respective obligations of the parties as set forth therein and pursuant to this tariff.

<u>Serving Wire Center</u>: A serving wire center denotes the wire center from which the Customer designated premises would normally obtain dial tone from the Company.

<u>Standard Network Interface</u>: The point where Company network services or facilities terminate and the Company's responsibility for installing and maintaining such services or facilities ends.

<u>Termination</u>: Permanent disconnection of telecommunications service.

<u>Termination Charge</u>: A charge applied under certain conditions when a contract for service is terminated by the Customer before the expiration of the minimum contract period.

**CANCELLED** 

APR 0,5 2000

By (SERP 4)
Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

Seivice Commission

FILED JAN 14 2000

JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

Missouri Public Service Commission

DSL -Digital Subscriber Line

**RECD FEB 2 5 2000** 

<u>DSLAM</u> - Digital Subscriber Line Access Multiplexers

ICB - Individual Case Basis

**IDSL** - Integrated Digital Subscriber Line

**ISDN** - Integrated Services Digital Network

Kbps - Kilobits per second

LEC - Local Exchange Carrier

LIS - Local Interconnection Service

Mbps - Megabits per second

OC - Optical Carrier

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

170-2004-0283

Public Service Commission MISSOURI

POI - Point of Interface

SDSL - Symmetrical Digital Subscriber Line

Missouri Public Service Commission

FILED APR 0 5 2000

### <u>SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF BASIC SERVICE AND RATES</u>

(T)

#### 3.1 General

JATO DSL services are non-switched, local exchange technologies that allow multiple forms of data and video to be carried over standard twisted pair coppers, or UNEs, on the local loop between the central office and the end user site.

JATO DSL services do not include access to/from the Public Switched Network (PSN). JATO DSL services provide data connections only and does not assign or otherwise route traffic by use of the telephone numbers, i.e. NPA-NXX-XXXX.

In the event that JATO begins to provide service to/from the PSN, JATO will file tariffs reflecting the rates, terms and conditions for such services.

JATO DSL (Digital Subscriber Line) services utilize technology over metallic local loop facilities to provide Customers with high-speed data services which utilize the twisted pair copper lines procured from the LEC in the form of unbundled network elements.

Issued: February 25, 2000

Nijssouri Public Sarvice Commission

DSL -Digital Subscriber Line

**DSLAM** - Digital Subscriber Line Access Multiplexers

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

ICB - Individual Case Basis

IDSL - Integrated Digital Subscriber Line

ISDN - Integrated Services Digital Network

Kbps - Kilobits per second

LEC - Local Exchange Carrier

LIS - Local Interconnection Service

Mbps - Megabits per second

OC - Optical Carrier

POI - Point of Interface

CANCELLED

APR 05 2000 15t 2942

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

SDSL - Symmetrical Digital Subscriber Line

#### SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES

#### 3.1 General

JATO DSL services are non-switched, local exchange technologies that allow multiple forms of data and video to be carried over standard twisted pair coppers, or UNEs, on the local loop between the central office and the end user site.

JATO DSL services do not include access to/from the Public Switched Network (PSN). JATO DSL services provide data connections only and does not assign or otherwise route traffic by use of the telephone numbers, i.e. NPA-NXX-XXXX.

In the event that JATO begins to provide service to/from the PSN, JATO will file tariffs reflecting the rates, terms and conditions for such services.

JATO DSL (Digital Subscriber Line) services utilize technology over metallic local loop facilities to provide Customers with high-speed data services which utilize the twisted pair copper lines procured from the LEC in the form of unbundled network elements.

FILED JAN 14 2000

Issued: November 30, 1999

Effective: January 14, 2000

1

# SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF BASIC SERVICE AND RATES souri Public Service Commission

#### 3.1 <u>General</u> (continued)

REC'D AUG 18 2000

JATO DSL services utilize Customer-provided equipment, located at the Customer's premises, and Company-provided equipment, at Company Central Offices, to allow the Company to accept data traffic from the Customer and send data transmissions to the appropriate data networks.

The furnishing of JATO DSL services requires certain physical arrangements of the facilities of the Company and is subject to the availability of such facilities. Data speeds set forth in this Tariff are peak speeds. Actual speeds may be affected by loop length and other technical factors. Data speeds are therefore not guaranteed or warranted.

Applying DSL technology to local loop metallic facilities, JATO DSL services enable home and business Customers the following data transmission speeds:

144 Kbps bi-directional 160 Kbps bi-directional	CANCELLED	(N)
192 Kbps bi-directional	MAR 1 4 2004	
384 Kbps bi-directional		
768 Kbps bi-directional	by 10-2004-0283	
1.04 Mbps bi-directional	By TD-2004-0283 Public Service Commission MISSOURI	<b>(T)</b>
1.5 Mbps bi-directional	MISSOURI	

JATO may also offer multiplexed derivatives of these service speeds.

A LEC's unbundled network element serves as the access facilities for JATO DSL services from the Customer's home or remote location to their serving wire center.

The Customer must provide and install at the Customer's JATO DSL service site, a compatible modern which must support Customer-selected speeds.

The furnishing of JATO DSL services requires certain physical arrangements of facilities of the Company and is subject to the availability of such facilities. The availability of JATO DSL services is restricted by special plant configuration and material specifications that will not permit deployment to all Customers at all locations.

The Company's deployment of JATO DSL services will be limited to wire centers where, in the Company's determination, sufficient market demand exists, coupled with an adequate level of loops suitable to meet that demand. Deployment will be limited to Customers served by loops, which in the Company's judgment, are suitable for use with this new technology.

Missouri Public Service Commission

FILED SEP 17 2000

Effective: September 17, 2000

# SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF BASIC SERVICE AND RATES MISSOURI PUBLIC Service Commission

#### 3.1 General (continued)

RECT) FEB 2 5 2000

JATO DSL services utilize Customer-provided equipment, located at the Customer's premises, and Company-provided equipment, at Company Central Offices, to allow the Company to accept data traffic from the Customer and send data transmissions to the appropriate data networks.

The furnishing of JATO DSL services requires certain physical arrangements of the facilities of the Company and is subject to the availability of such facilities. Data speeds set forth in this Tariff are peak speeds. Actual speeds may be affected by loop length and other technical factors. Data speeds are therefore not guaranteed or warranted.

Applying DSL technology to local loop metallic facilities, JATO DSL services enable home and business Customers the following data transmission speeds:

> 144 Kbps bi-directional 192 Kbps bi-directional 384 Kbps bi-directional 768 Kbps bi-directional

1.1 Mbps bi-directional 1.5 Mbps bi-directional CANCELLED

SEP, 17 2000 EV 2ND RP 43

JATO may also offer multiplexed derivatives of these service speeds.

A LEC's unbundled network element serves as the access facilities for JATO DSL services from the Customer's home or remote location to their serving wire center.

The Customer must provide and install at the Customer's JATO DSL service site, a compatible modem which must support Customer-selected speeds.

The furnishing of JATO DSL services requires certain physical arrangements of facilities of the Company and is subject to the availability of such facilities. The availability of JATO DSL services is restricted by special plant configuration and material specifications that will not permit deployment to all Customers at all locations.

The Company's deployment of JATO DSL services will be limited to wire centers where, in the Company's determination, sufficient market demand exists, coupled with an adequate level of loops suitable to meet that demand. Deployment will be limited to Customers served by loops, which in the Company's judgment, are suitable for use with this new technology.

\_\_Missouri\_Pasiiga...

FILED APR 0 5 2000

#### **SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES**

#### Missouri Public Service Commission

# 3.1 General (continued)

REC'D NOV 3 0 1999

JATO DSL services utilize Customer-provided equipment, located at the Customer's premises, and Company-provided equipment, at Company Central Offices, to allow the Company to accept data traffic from the Customer and send data transmissions to the appropriate data networks.

The furnishing of JATO DSL services requires certain physical arrangements of the facilities of the Company and is subject to the availability of such facilities. Data speeds set forth in this Tariff are peak speeds. Actual speeds may be affected by loop length and other technical factors. Data speeds are therefore not guaranteed or warranted.

Applying DSL technology to local loop metallic facilities, JATO DSL services enable home and business Customers the following data transmission speeds:

144 Kbps bi-directional

192 Kbps bi-directional

384 Kbps bi-directional

768 Kbps bi-directional

1.1 Mbps bi-directional

1.5 Mbps bi-directional

CANCELLED

APR 0 5 2000

Fublic Service Commission

JATO may also offer multiplexed derivatives of these service speeds.

A LEC's unbundled network element serves as the access facilities for JATO DSL services from the Customer's home or remote location to their serving wire center.

The Customer must provide and install at the Customer's JATO DSL service site, a compatible modem which must support Customer-selected speeds.

The furnishing of JATO DSL services requires certain physical arrangements of facilities of the Company and is subject to the availability of such facilities. The availability of JATO DSL services is restricted by special plant configuration and material specifications that will not permit deployment to all Customers at all locations.

The Company's deployment of JATO DSL services will be limited to wire centers where, in the Company's determination, sufficient market demand exists, coupled with an adequate level of loops suitable to meet that demand. Deployment will be limited to Customers served by loops, which in the Company's judgment, are suitable for use with this new technology.

Service Commission

0 0 - 1 4 1
FILED JAN 14 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 1 4 2000

Issued:

#### SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF BASIC SERVICE AND RATES

#### 3.1 General (continued)

Missouri Public Service Commission

The specific limitations applicable to JATO DSL service are as follows:

**REC'D AUG 18 2000** 

- a. The loop between the Customer premises and the serving wire center can be no longer than 15,000 feet of 26 gauge copper or 18,000 feet of 24 gauge copper.
- b. The loop must not have any load coils on it.

MAR 1 4 2004

c. All bridge taps must be counted in the total loop length.

- TD-2004-0283
- d. The maximum length of any bridge tap cannot exceed 2,000 feet.
- ∠ublić Service Commission MISSOURI
- e. Total bridge tap length on Revised Resistance Design Loop cannot exceed 6,000 feet.
- f. Total bridge tap length on Carrier Serving Area Design Loop cannot exceed 2,500 feet.

JATO DSL services may be ordered on a month-to-month basis or for fixed periods of one, three, or five years. The initial order of a JATO DSL service must be for either a one, three or five year fixed service period; however, at the completion of the initial fixed period, the Customer may elect the month-to-month option for that service configuration, or may elect any of the fixed service periods.

#### 3.2 <u>Basic Rate Categories</u>

#### 3.2.1. <u>SDSL</u>

SDSL, Symmetrical Digital Subscriber Line, is a Digital Transmission Service furnished by the Company to provide high-speed data services at speeds ranging from up to 160 kbps, 192 kbps, (N) 384 kbps, 768 kbps, 1.04 Mbps, to 1.5 Mbps. This service allows high speed data transmission (T) via permanent virtual circuits between the Customer premise terminating device(s) to JATO's Digital Subscriber Line Access Multiplexers (DSLAMs) and through to other applications such as office to office communications or to the Internet for various communication applications.

#### 3.2.2. IDSL-ISDN

IDSL - ISDN Digital Subscriber Line is a Digital Transmission Service to provide high-speed data services for speeds of up to 144 kbps for office to office applications or access to the Internet. This service allows data transmission via a permanent virtual circuit between the Customer premise terminating device and the Company DSLAM, then to Company aggregation units and to specific Internet Service Providers or another designated office.

Missouri Public Service Commission

FILED SEP 17 2000

Effective: September 17, 2000

#### **SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF BASIC SERVICE AND RATES**

(T)

# 3.1 <u>General</u> (continued)

Missouri Public

The specific limitations applicable to JATO DSL service are as follows: RECD FEB 2 5 2000

- a. The loop between the Customer premises and the serving wire center can be no longer than 15,000 feet of 26 gauge copper or 18,000 feet of 24 gauge copper.
- b. The loop must not have any load coils on it.

CANCELLED

c. All bridge taps must be counted in the total loop length.

SEP 17 2000 2 No. R P44

- d. The maximum length of any bridge tap cannot exceed 2,000 feet ublic Service Commission
- e. Total bridge tap length on Revised Resistance Design Loop cannot exceed 6,000 feet.
- f. Total bridge tap length on Carrier Serving Area Design Loop cannot exceed 2,500 feet.

JATO DSL services may be ordered on a month-to-month basis or for fixed periods of one, three, or five years. The initial order of a JATO DSL service must be for either a one, three or five year fixed service period; however, at the completion of the initial fixed period, the Customer may elect the month-to-month option for that service configuration, or may elect any of the fixed service periods.

# 3.2 <u>Basic Rate Categories</u>

**(T)** 

#### 3.2.1. <u>SDSL</u>

(N)

(N)

SDSL, Symmetrical Digital Subscriber Line, is a Digital Transmission Service furnished by the Company to provide high-speed data services at speeds ranging from up to 144kbps, 192kbps, 384kbps, 768kbps, 1.1Mbps, to 1.5Mbps. This service allows high speed data transmission via permanent virtual circuits between the Customer premise terminating device(s) to JATO's Digital Subscriber Line Access Multiplexers (DSLAMs) and through to other applications such as office to office communications or to the Internet for various communication applications.

#### 3.2.2. <u>IDSL-ISDN</u>

FILED APR 0 5 2000

IDSL - ISDN Digital Subscriber Line is a Digital Transmission Service to provide highspeed data services for speeds of up to 144kbps for office to office applications or access to the Internet. This service allows data transmission via a permanent virtual circuit between the Customer premise terminating device and the Company DSLAM, then to Company aggregation units and to specific Internet Service Providers or another designated office.

Issued: February 25, 2000

#### **SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES**

# Missouri Public Service Commission

# 3.1 General (continued)

**RECD NOV 30 1999** 

The specific limitations applicable to JATO DSL service are as follows:

- a. The loop between the Customer premises and the serving wire center can be no longer than 15,000 feet of 26 gauge copper or 18,000 feet of 24 gauge copper.
- b. The loop must not have any load coils on it.
- c. All bridge taps must be counted in the total loop length.
- d. The maximum length of any bridge tap cannot exceed 2,000 feet.
- e. Total bridge tap length on Revised Resistance Design Loop cannot exceed 6,000 feet.
- f. Total bridge tap length on Carrier Serving Area Design Loop cannot exceed 2,500 feet.

JATO DSL services may be ordered on a month-to-month basis or for fixed periods of one, three, or five years. The initial order of a JATO DSL service must be for either a one, three or five year fixed service period; however, at the completion of the initial fixed period, the Customer may elect the month-to-month option for that service configuration, or may elect any of the fixed service periods.

# 3.2 <u>Rate Categories</u>

DSL, Symmetrical Digital Subscriber Line, is a Digital Transmission Service furnished by the Company to provide high-speed data services at speeds ranging from up to 144kbps, 192kbps, 384kbps, 768kbps, 1.1Mbps, to 1.5Mbps. This service allows high speed data transmission via permanent virtual circuits between the Customer premise terminating device(s) to JATO's Digital Subscriber Line Access Multiplexers (DSLAMs) and through to other applications such as office to office communications or to the Internet for various communication applications.

IDSL - ISDN Digital Subscriber Line is a Digital Transmission Service to provide high-speed data services for speeds of up to 144kbps for office to office applications or access to the Internet. This service allows data transmission via a permanent virtual circuit between the Customer premise terminating device and the Company DSLAM, then to Company aggregation units and to specific Internet Service Providers or another designated office.

# CANCELLED

APR 0.5 2000

By 15t RP 44

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

-- Vice 9-5 Fragision 0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 1 4 2000

JAN 1 4 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

#### **SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF BASIC SERVICE AND RATES**

**(T)** 

3.3 Rates

Rates for JATO's services will be determined on an Individual Case Basis (ICB). ICB rates will be structured to recover the Company's cost of providing the services and will be made available to customers on a non-discriminatory manner. Terms of specific ICB contracts will be made available to the Missouri Public Service Commission Staff upon request on a proprietary basis. ICB rates will not be used for switched services.

**REC'D FEB 2 5 2000** 

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

Depth T1 - 2004 - 0283

Public Service Commission

MISSOURI

service commission

FILED APR 0 5 2000

Issued: February 25, 2000

# SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES WISSOUT FUDILE Service Commission

3.3. <u>Rates</u>

**REC'D NOV 30 1999** 

Rates for JATO's services will be determined on an Individual Case Basis (ICB). ICB rates will be structured to recover the Company's cost of providing the services and will be made available to customers on a non-discriminatory manner. Terms of specific ICB contracts will be made available to the Missouri Public Service Commission Staff upon request on a proprietary basis. ICB rates will not be used for switched services.

# **CANCELLED**

APR 0 5 2000

ruplic Service Commission
MISSOURI

Mingouri Public Service Commission 0 0 - 1 4 1 FILED JAN 14 2000

NOV 3 0 1999

JAN 14 2000

Issued:

#### **SECTION 4 - EXPANDED SERVICES**

RECEIVED

# 4.1 Office-to-Office Solutions

MAY 1 1 2000

Office-to-Office Solutions uses IDSL and SDSL to transmit data between the Customer's geographically dispersed locations over the Company's network. One of the Customer's locations must be designated as a "hub," with the remaining location(s) designated as a "remote location(s)." The "hub" is a centralized point at which all network traffic must flow. IDSL or SDSL is required at each location to establish a permanent virtual circuit between the "hub" and "remote location(s)."

The Customer's network must within the Company's network serving area, and the (T) facilities serving the customer support IDSL and SDSL.

Office-to-Office Solutions may be ordered for fixed periods of one, two, three, four, or five years. At the completion of the initial fixed period, the Customer may elect month-to-month service or any of the fixed service periods.

Office-to-Office Solutions has two monthly charges: a service charge, and a point-to-point charge for each permanent virtual connection between the "hub" and the "remote location(s)," which is based on the service speed of the "remote location(s)."

# 4.2 <u>Teleworker Option</u>

(N)

This option utilizes the same configuration as Office-to-Office Solutions, described in 4.1 (N) above, with the exception that the "remote location(s)" consist only of one end-user rather than multiple end-users. The monthly service charges for the Teleworker Option are the same as the Office-to-Office Solutions listed above in 4.1. The monthly point-to-point charge is per each permanent virtual connection between the "hub" and the "remote location(s)."

CANCELLED

MAR 1 4 2004

7D-2004-0283

Public Service Commission
MISSOURI

FILED

JUN 12 2000

Public Service Commission

Effective: June 12, 2000

# SECTION 4 - EXPANDED SERVICES Missouri Public (N)

# 4.1 Office-to-Office Solutions

**REC'D** FEB 2 5 2000

(N)

Office-to-Office Solutions uses IDSL and SDSL to transmit data between the Customer's geographically dispersed locations over the Company's network. One of the Customer's locations must be designated as a "hub," with the remaining location(s) designated as a "remote location(s)." The "hub" is a centralized point at which all network traffic must flow. IDSL or SDSL is required at each location to establish a permanent virtual circuit between the "hub" and "remote location(s)."

The Customer's locations must within the Company's network serving area, and the facilities serving the customer support IDSL and SDSL.

Office-to-Office Solutions may be ordered for fixed periods of one, two, three, four, or five years. At the completion of the initial fixed period, the Customer may elect month-to-month service or any of the fixed service periods.

Office-to-Office Solutions has two monthly charges: a service charge, and a point-to-point charge for each permanent virtual connection between the "hub" and the "remote location(s)," which is based on the service speed of the "remote location(s)."

CANCELLED

JUN 1 2 2000

JET RO HO

Public Service Commission

MISSOURI

Missouri Public

FILED APR 0 5 2000